United

Utilities United Utilities Water PLC

Annual Report &
Accounts 2005

*¥ARTUA? 2% 1259

A
COMPANIES HOUSE 04/08/05




.




Chairman's statement

Delivering efficiency and quality
QOur focus continues to be on delivering value for money through
improving both efficiency and the quality of our services.

Our business

During the five ysars to 2005 we carried out the largest single
investment programme in the UK water industry, requiring a total
investment of around £3 billion. Such was the scale of the
programme, that £1 of every £4 invested in drinking water and
environmental improvements in England and Wales over the five-
year period was spent in north west England.

The business had significant success this year, improving
water quality, wastewater compliance and delivering over £700
mitlion of capital investment. We have upgraded over 90 water
treatment works tc improve drinking water quality for our
customers, and the impact of storm overflows from sewers into
watercourses has been reduced at over 730 sites across the
region while treaiment has been improved at 159 wastewater
treatment works.

Furthermore, service levels continued to improve the Overalt
Performance Assessment (OPA} score, as measured by Ofwat, to
399 points in 2004/05 from 394 in 2003/C4. The continued
objective is to sustain the ievel of operational performance and
reduce the cost of short-term remedial work required.

On water quality, we Improved our performance to 89.74 per
cent an the Drinking Water Inspectorate’s water quality index, up
from 99.72 per cent the previous year. We maintained water
supplies to all customers during 2004/05 without the need for any
water restriction. In respect of wastewater, the 2004/05 score in
respect of non-compliant works {measured per head of population
served) was 0.002 per cent, an improvement on the level
achieved in 2003/04 of 0.26 per cent. This was achieved by
putting problem works into an ‘intensive care’ programme,
increasing maintenarice spend, operator invalvement and capital
work. In 2004708, as part of the capital investment programme,
76 continuous discharge and 145 intermittent discharge
improvernent projects were delivered.

Throughout the year, real improvements in managing cash and
the problems associated with long-standing customer debt have
continued tc be defivered.

Qur customers

Regulatory targets on all customer service measures have been
met or exceeded. The number of telephone calls answered within
30 seconds was 93.9 per cent, against a regulatory targst of 86
per cent and a 2003/04 industry average of 93.5 per cent.

We have migrated the vast majority of our customers onto a
new billing system, and this has been used to calculate and send
customers’ bills for 2005/06. The new system is targeted to
deliver cost savings for the business in 2005/06 as well as
providing significant service improvements for customers.

The price rises alowed in the recent water price review cause
concern for the Company and its customers about the affordability
of water bills, particularly for vulnerable customers. Processes are
in place to manage debt in a way that is fair to customers and
effective for the business. Furthermore, a range of initiatives is
available that provide support, such as our vulnerable customer
tariff, an arears alowance scheme and money advice services.

We have taken a leading role in the Debt Focus Group of
Water UK, an industry-wide body, looking at ways to improve the
Department for Work and Pensions' "Water Direct’” scheme and it
continues to lobby for changes to the benefits system to extend
the range of benefits from which deductions can be made and to
imprave take-up of such schemes.

In 2005, an independent charitabye trust was created, to
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which we intend to donate £15 million over the next five years.
The trust will help water customers facing financial difficulty by
clearing outstanding water arrears and other, non-water, bil's.

Our people
On behalf of the board, | want to acknowledge and thank all
our staff for their commitment and hard work in achieving
these results.

We have implemented a series of health and safety initiatives
to reduce risk to employees and visitors to our sites. This has
helped reduce the days lost due to accidents from 985 to 851.

Looking forward

To ensure that higher levels of performance continue to be
achieved following the acceptance of the final determinations in
December 2004, new initiatives are being designed to improve
efficiency and reduce cost. Key to this aim, the business
restructuring programme Is designed to streamline operations,
achieve cost savings and enable customer service o be led from
one part of the business. Procedures are now largely In place for
the managemeant of the next five-year capital investment
programmes in water and wastewater. This will ensure that the
appropriate business processes, organisation, systems and
commercial contracts are in place to provide maximum
shareholder value from the asset base.

During May 2005, we appcinted partners to help deliver our
£2 9 bilicn water and wastewater programme during the AMP4
(2005-10) regulatory period. This covers the majority of the water
quality and environmental improvements that will be carried out
on our treatment works and major sewer overflows over the next
five years.

The delivery of our previous investment programme has
confirmed the success of our framework contractor approach,
which was put in place during the previous reguiatory period. The
delivery strategy for AMP4 builds on this success with the
Company taking a leading role In programme management,
increasing our internal resources in engineering and design and
placing a greater emphasis on performance management through
the alignment of financial targets with partners and benchmarking
out-turn results. A key enabler is the creaticn of integrated work
teams with responsibility for delivering projects from conception
through to commissloning. These changes will help us deliver the
capital efficiencies required by Ofwat,

John Roberts
Chairman, United Utilities Water PLC
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Operating and financial review

Working in partnership with contractors, the business is
successfully delivering Ofwat’s regulatory output schedule. The
policy to standardise designs and equipment, wherever possible,
is helping to make sure money is invested wisely and reduce the
whole-life costs of new plant and equipment.

Water supply operations

All water supplied is treated in order to meet the appropriate
standards enforced by the Drinking Water Inspectorate, the
government regulator of drinking water in England and Wales.
United Utilities Water monitors water quality by analysing samples
regularty for both microbiclogical and chemical parameters. in the
calendar year 2004, the business continued to improve quality,
with 99.92 per cent of all compliance tests of water in distribution
meeting the drinking water standard.

A number of major projects to improve drinking water guality
were completed in 2004/5. This included a £41 million project for
the Rivington and Lostock Strategy constructing a new water
treatment works fo address cryptosperidium for a 180 megalitres
per day supply fo the Manchester arga. It also included a £38
millicn project to upgrade Franklaw water treatment warks, with a
supply capacity of 220 megalitres per day to the Fylde area, to
address cryplosporidium.

Wastewater operations

United Utilities Water is responsible for the collection, treatment
and disposal of domestic wastewater, trade effluent, and surface
water in north west England. United Utifties Water's wastewater
treatment works provide a range of treatments, including physical,
chemical and biological processes. Treated liquid final effluent is
discharged into rivers, estuaries or via sea outfalls.

Quiality tests by the Environment Agency show a pass rate of
aimost 100 per cent for the ceastal and inland waterways
designated as bathing waters. In total, 36 cut of the north west's
37 pathing water areas met strict EU standards. When the tests
hegan in 1988 only six bathing waters passed.

fn the vear ending 31 March 2005, we were prosecuted on
nine oceasions relating to pollution incidents and consent
breaches (eight in 2004), We are continuing to work closely with
the Environment Agency, highlighting the reduction in pcllution
incidents as a particular target for the business. Investment in

odour control systems also increased, addressing an issue that
has become of growing concern to some of our customers,

A number of schemes in the sewer overflow programme {also
known as UIDs}, which had been identified as being poor value for
money, were eliminated from 2004/05 prices. In the review of
price limits completed in 2004, United Utilities Water agreed a
revised UID work programme with Ofwat. In its final determinaticn
in December 2004, Ofwat included completed or proposed work
it considered to be cost-effective within 2005-10 prices. United
Utilities Water will seek recovery of any additiona! work and related
costs according to the procedures set out in Ofwat's protocol for
dealing with changed requirements between price limits or
through the next price review.

Financial results

We continue to invest heavily in our water and wastewater
networks. Gross capital investment for the year was in excess of
£700 million, bringing the total investment in improving water and
wastewater services in the north west to approximately £7.4
hillion since privatisation.

Turnover increased by £105.8 million to £1,135.1 milion
resulting from the real increase of 8.9 per cent in water and
wastewater prices. Operating costs increased by £28.0 million to
£6786.2 million, including £14.1 million exceptional charge for
restructuring costs in preparation for meeting the 2005-10
efficiency challenges, and also reflecting a number of cther
factors, principally higher costs associated with the expanding
asset base as part of the capital investment programme.

As a result of the above, operating profit increased to £458.9
million from £381.1 million in the previous year. Net interest
payable has also increased due to our continued significant
investment programme. The overall result of the above is an
increase in proft before tax of £46.5 million to £244.0 million.

Taxation

The current UK mainstream corporation tax credit in 2004/05
reflects the high level of accelerated tax allowances arising from
the capital investment. The effective current ordinary tax credit
(excluding exceptional items) of 0.4 per cent compares with a
credit of 5.7 per cent in 2003/04. The effect of deferred tax is to
increase the effective ordinary tax charge {excluding exceptional
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items) to 16.3 per cent compared to a credit of 20.7 per cent in
2003/04. The deferred tax charge is £38.9 million (including
exceptional credit of £4.2 million, 2004 - nil) compared to a credit
of £29.7 million in 2003/04, The difference between 2004/05 and
the prior year is mainly because there has been no significant
movement in UK government bond rates during this year, while
the credit in 2003/04 reflects the impact of a higher discount rate
than the prior year. An exceptional deferred tax cradit in 2004/05
of £4.2 miliion is primarily due to restructuring costs incurred by
the Company.

Capital structure and treasury policy

The level of capital expenditure which the Company is obliged to
incur is such that it cannot be wholly financed by internally
generated resources. As a result, the Company raises finance
regularly to fund the long term assets required to meet regulatory
obligations.

I the year, total borrowings increased by £713.5 millicn to
£3,881.0 millien, while net debt rose by £509.0 million to
£3,349.3 million. Net interest payable rose by £31.3 million to
£214.9 million reflecting the increase in borrowings and
movements in interest rates.

Operating within policies approved by the board, the United
Utilities PLC Group treasury functicn does not act as a profit
centre and does not undertake any speculative trading activity.
We ensure sufficient funding Is avallable to meet foraseeable
needs and maintain reascnable headroom for contingencies.
Long-term borrowings are structured or hedged to match
eamings, which are largely in sterling, indexed to inflation and
subject to regulatory price reviews every five years. Exposure to
interest rate movements for the following 12 months is largely
eliminated each financial year using shori-term hedges.

The credit quality of counterparties and individual aggregate
exposures are reviewed bi-annually. Moody's Investors Service rates
the credit of United UWtilities Water PLC as AZ an a long-term basis
with a stable cutlock and P-1 on a short-term basig. Equivatent
ratings published by Standard and Poor's Rating Services are A-
long-term with a stable cutlook and A-2 short-term.

United Utilities PLC’s €5 billion medium-term and $1.5 billion
short-term note issuance programmes continue to provide
effective funding options for the Company. During the period, the
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Operating and financial review (continued)

Company arranged £770 million of term funding. This mainly
comprises bends from the medium term note programme and an
intercompany loan. We have also increased bank facilities by £50
million. Liquidity as at 31 March 2005 provided by short-term
current investments totalied £491.0 million. This, together with
undrawn committed bank facilities of £365.0 million provides
substantial pre-funding for the Company. Returns on investment
and servicing of finance in the cash flow statement include £19.7
million of cash received in 2004/05 due to the early termination of
certain interest rate swap contracts, £64.0 milion was received in
2003/04 through a similar exercise. This reduced credit exposures
to swap counterparties. The resultant accounting gains are being
deferred in the balance sheet and will be released to the profit and
loss account over the period of the initial hedge.

Interest rate management

We manage interest rate exposure by seeking to match financing
costs as closely as possible with the revenues generated by our
assets. Our exposure to interest rate fluctuations is managed in
the medium-term through the use of interest rate swaps and the
use of financial futures contracts traded on LIFFE. The Company's
borrowings at 31 March 2005 are set out in note 19 on pages 20
o 23.

Pensions

The valuation of the United Uitilities PLC group's pension schemes
under FRS 17 results in a net pension deficit at 31 March 2005 of
£55.7 milion compared with a net deficit of £264.4 million at 31
March 2C04. The Company made a lump sum pensions
contribution of £113.8 mitiion, split between the United Utilities
PLC group’s pension schemes, on 31 March 2005. The Company
dees not expect to make any further cash contributions during the
2005/10 period in to the defined benefit schemes, although the
results of the next actuartal valuation will be incorporated into the
2007/08 financial statements.

Martin Beesley
Finance Director
United Utilities Water PLC
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LIrectors report
for the year ended 31 March 2005

Principal activities
United Utilities Water PLC provides water supply and sewerage
services in north west England in accordance with its licence held
under the Water Industry Act 1991,

This report is 1o be read in canjunction with the Chaiman’s
statement and Operating and Financial Review, which appear on
the preceding pages.

Results and dividends

The results for the year, set out in the profit and loss account on
page 6, show that turnover for the year ended 31 March 2005
increased to £1,135.1 million, an increase of 10.3 per cent over
the previous year. Profit for the year after tax was £206.1 million
(2004 - £238.4 million).

An interim dividend of £68.2 million (2004 - £66.7 million) was
paid in February 2005. The directors recommend a final dividend
of £137.5 million {2004 - £134.9 million) for the vear to 31 March
2005.

Preference share dividends totalled £8.1 million (2004 - £9.1
miflicn).

Regulation

As required by paragraph 3.1 of Condition K of the Instrument of
Appoiniment granted by the Secretary of Siate for the
Environment of the Company as a water and sewerage
undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1891 (“the Licence™), the
directors state that they are satisfied that as at 31 March 2005, if
a special administration order had been made under section 23 of
the Water Industry Act 19891 in respect of United Ultilities Water
PLC, the Company would have had available to it sufficient rights
and assets {not including financial resources) to have enabled the
special administrator to manage the affairg, businass and
properties of the Company so that the purpose of the order could
have been achieved.

The directors have issued a certificate under Condition FEA of
the Licence stating that the Company will have available to it
sufficient financial and management resources and facilities to
enable it 1o carry out, for at least twelve months, its regulated
activities. This certificate alsc confirms that ail contracts entered
into with any associated company included all necessary provision
and requirements concerning the standard of service 1o be
supplied by the Company to ensure that it is able to meet all its
cbligations as a water and sewerage undertaker.

The contract of appointment with the auditors satisfies the
requirements of paragraph 9.2 of Condition F of the Licence,
namely that “the auditors will pravide such further explanation or
clarffication of their reports, and such further information in respect
of the matters which are the subject of their reperts, as the
Director General may reascnably require”,

Employment policies

Employees are key to achieving our business goals and the
Company is committed to improving the skills of its people. The
Company respects the dignity and rights of every employee,
supports them in performing various roles in society and
challenges prejudice and stereotyping. The Company is
committed to involving employees through open and regular
communications about business changes to allow & free flow of
information and ideas.

We participate extensively in Business in the Community
programmes, encourage wider opportunities for women and for
people from ethnic minorities and we actively support employees
with disabilities.

Proper attention to health and safety is an indispensable part
of the Company's commitment to high standards in every aspect
of the business.

The Company encourages participation in the United Utilities
PLC Group's all employee share schemes.
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Research and development

The Company is committed t¢ developing innovative, cost-
effective and practical solutions for providing high quality services
and standards to our customers, and for the benefit of the wider
community and the development of the business, it seeks to take
as part of this process maximum advantage of wide-ranging
expertise, abilities and facilities within the Company.

Supplier payment policy and practice

The policy is normalfly to pay suppliers according to agreed terms
of business. These terms are agreed upon entering into binding
contracts and the Company seeks to adhere to the payment
terms provided the relevant goods and services have been
supplied in accordance with the contracts. The Company had 33
days of purchases (2004 - 39 days) outstanding at the end of the
financial year.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2005 are set out below. All were directors for the whole year
except where otherwise indicated. There are no ¢ther directors’
interests that require disclosure under Companies Act 1885.

Non-executive directors
P G S Entwistle
D E Morton JP

Executive directors

J E Roberts* Chairman (and Chief Executive, United Utiities PLC)
R D Armstrong

J A Barnes

S G Batey*

S Beaumont

M Beesley (appointed 14 October 2004)
K Budinger

C Cornish*

G Dixon

C H Elphick

J Lang

“Director, United Utilities PLC

Details of directors’ interests in ordinary and A shares of United
Utilities PLC are set out in note 5 to the accounts.

At no time in the year did any director have a material interest
in any contract or arrangement which was significant in relation to
the Cornpany’s business.

Independent Auditor

A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte & Touche LLP as the
Company’s auditors will be propesed at the forthceming Annual
General Meeting.

Registered address

United Utilities Water PLC
Cawson House

Great Sankey

Warrington

WAS 3LW

Registered number : 2366678

By order of the board

A

Martin Beesley
Dirggtor
15 July 2005
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Directors’ responsibilities
in respect of the preparation of financial statements

The directors are required by the Companies Act 1985 to prepare
financlal staterments for each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of United Utilities Water PLG at the
end of the financial year and of the results for the financial year.
The Company is also required to prepare accounting statements
each year which comply with the requirements of Cendition F of
the licence of the Company as a water and sewerage undertaker
under the Water Industry Act 1991. The accounting statements
may be combined with the financial statements.

The directers consider that in preparing the financial
statements on pages 6 to 44, the Company has used appropriate
accounting policies, consistently applied and supported by
reagonable and prudent judgements and estimates, and that all
accounting standards and all Regulatery Accounting Guidelines
issued by the Office of Water Services which they consider to be
applicable to these financial statements have been followed,
subject to any departure and explanation described in the notes
to the accounts. After making enqguiries, the direcicrs are of the
opinion that the Company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason,

z
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they continue to adopt a going concern basis in preparing these
financial statements. The directors have responsibility for ensuring
that the Company keeps accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Company and
which enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 1985.

In addition, the directors have responsibility for ensuring that
the Company keeps proper accounting records sufficient 1o
enable the historical cost and current cost information required by
Condition F of the licence to be prepared, having regard to all
relevant Regulatory Accounting Guidelines. The directors have a
general legal responsibility for taking such steps as are reascnably
cpen to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregutarities. The directors are
required to confirm in the financial staterents that, in their
opinion, the Comparny was in compliance with paragraph 3.1 of
Condition K of the licence relating to the avallability of the rights
and agsets, at the end of the financial year (see page 4).

independent auditors’ report

to the members of United Utilities Water PLC

We have audited the financial statements of United Utilities Water
PLC for the year ended 31 March 2005 which comprise the profit
and foss account, the balance shest, the cash flow statement, the
notes o the cash flow statement, the statement of total
recognised gains and losses, the reconciliation of movements in
shareholders’ funds, and the refated notes 1 to 28, These financial
statements have been prepared under the accounting poficies set
out therein.

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a
body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act
1986, Cur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state
to the Company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company's members as a body, for cur audit work, for this repaort,
or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As described in the statement of directors’ responsibilities, the
Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements in accordance with applicabie United
Kingdom law and accounting standards. Our respensibility is to
audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant United
Kingdem legal and reguiatory requirements and auditing
standards.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report if, in
cur opinion, the directors’ report is not consistent with the
financial statements, if the Company has not kept proper
accounting records, if we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for cur audit, or if information specified by
law regarding directors’ remuneration and transactions with the
Company and other members of the Group is not disclosed.

We read the directors’ raport and the other information
contained In the annual report for the above year as described in
the contents section and consider the implications for our report if
we become aware of any apparent misstatements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with United Kingdom
auditing standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An
audit includes examinaticn, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
financial statements and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
informaticn and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or
error. In forming our opinion, we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of informaticn in the financial
statements.

Opinion

In our opinicn, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2005 and of
the profit of the Company for the year then ended and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

, o o
/?%//é 2 /e £ L

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accouniants and Registered Auditors
Manchester

15 July 2005

United Milities Water PLC
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Profit and loss account

for the year ended 31 March

2005 2004
Note fm £m
Turnover 1{c),2 1,1351 1,029.3
Met operatmg costs (including exceptional charges in 2005 of £14.1 million, 2004 - nll) 3 (676.2) (648. 2)
Operating profit 458.9 3811
Net interest payable and other similar charges 7 (214 9) (183 6)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 244.0 1975
Tax on prof iton ordlnary activities 8 (37.9) 409
Profit for the financiat year 206.1 238.4
Dividends 9 (214.9) (210.7)
Transfer (from)lto reserves 21 (8.8} 27.7

The above resuits for the current and preceding financiat year relate to continuing operations,

Thereg are no recognised gains or losses in the current and preceding financial year, other than as stated in the profit and loss account,
and as such no statement of total recognised gains and losses has been prepared.

Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

For the vear ended 31 March

2005 2004
£m £m
Prefit for the financial year 206.1 238.4
Dividendis (214.9) 210.7)
Net movement in shareholders' funds for the year {8.8) 27.7
New share capital issued - 100.0
Opening shareholders funds 2,256.2 2,128.5
Closing shareholders' funds 2,247.4 2,256.2

United Utilities Water PLC
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At 31 March
Note 2005 2004
£m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 10 6,202.6 5,846.5
Investments iR 0.3 0.4
6,292.9 58469
Current assets
Stock 2.8 2.4
Debtors 12 366.5 2551
investments 13 491.0 278.8
Cash at bank and in hand - 77
860.3 5440
Creditors
Armcunts faling due within one year 14 (1,174.9) (767.0)
Net current liabilities {314.6) (223.0)
Total assets less current liabilities 5,978.3 5,823.9
Creditors
Amounts falling due after more than one year 15 (3,467.3) (3,148.4)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 17 (263.6) (219.3)
Net assets 2,247.4 2,258.2
Capital and reserves
Share capital 20 755.3 755.3
Share premium account 20 647.8 647.8
Profit and loss account 21 844.3 853.1
Shareholders' funds 22474 2,256.2
Shareholders’ funds may be analysed as:
Equity interests 2,024.0 2,032.8
Non-equity interests 223.4 2234
22474 2258.2

Approved by the board of directors on 15 July 2005 and signed on its behalf by:

/1,

Martin Beesley
Finance Director

United LKilities Water PLC

7




Annual Report & Accounts 2005

Cash flow statement

For year ended 31 March

2005 2005 2004 2004
£m £m £m £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities 605.9 667.1
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received 9.9 11.9
Interest paid (222.0) (194.6)
Interast element of finance lease repayments (5.9) (6.0
Termination of interest rate swap contracts 19.7 64.0
Income received from current asset investments 2.3 8.0
Non-equity dividends paid 9.1) 9.1)
Net cash outflow from retums on investment and servicing of finance {204.8} {125.8)
Taxation 13.5 9.1
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (735.5) (831.9)
Grants and contributions received 17.6 139
Dispesal of tangible fixed assets 23 : 7.2
Net cash outflow for capital expenditure {715.6) {810.8)
Acquisitions and disposals 0.1 1.0
Equity dividends paid (203.2) (158.1)
Cash outflow before management of liquid resources and financing (504.1) (457.5)
Management of liquid resources
{increase)/decrease in short term deposits 212.2) 174.2
Financing 734.1 250.4
Increase/{decrease) in cash and overdrafts 17.8 (32.9)
Notes to the cash flow statement
For year ended 31 March
2005 2004
£m £m
Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities
Operating profit 458.9 3811
Depreciation 249.3 2591
Amortisation of grants and contributions {4.1) (3.7)
Profit on dispesal of tangible fixed assets (2.1} 4.5)
Stock (increase)/decrease {0.4) 0.1
Debtors (increase)/decrease (111.8) 3.5
Creditors increase 10.7 315
Movement in other provisions 5.4 -
Net cash inflow from operating activities 605.9 667.1

United Wtilities Water PLC 8




Notes to the cash How statement {continued)

For the year ended 31 March
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2005 2004
£m £m
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
Increase/{decrease) in cash and overdrafts in the year 17.8 (32.9)
Cash inflow from increase in debt and lease financing (734.1) (150.4)
Cash used to increase/(decrease) liquid resources 212.2 (174.2)

Changes in net debt resulting from cash flows
Exchange and other non-cash adjustments

Movement in net debt in the year

Opening net debt

Net debt at 31 March

{504.1) (357.5)
(4.9) 4.6

(500.0) (352.9)
{2,840.3)  (2.487.4)

{3,349.3) (2,840.3)

2005 2004
£m £m
Analysis of cash flows for headings netted in the cash flow statement
Financing
Issue of shares - 100.0
New loans 779.4 322.6
Loans repaid {45.3) {51.8)
Finance lease repaid - (102.3)
New short term borrowings - 12.3
Short term borowings repaid - (30.4)
Net cash inflow from financing 734.% 250.4
2005 2004
£m £m
Acquisitions and disposals
Disposals:
Current assets 0.1 6.1)
Current liabilities . 5.4
Net cash inflow from disposal g1 1.C

Analysis of changes in net debt
Cash at bank and in hand
Qverdrafts

Parent undertaking ioans
Debt due after one year
Debt due within cne year
Finance Leases

Current asset investments

Net debt

A1 April Non - cash At 31 March

2004 Cashflow movements 2005

£m £m £m £m

7.7 7.7 - -

{38.5) 25,5 - (13.0)
30.8) 17.8 (13.0)

40.7 - - 40.7
{2,990.4) 313.1) (1.5)  {3,305.0)
{57.6) (421.0) (3.4) {482.0}
81.0) - - (81.0)
(3,119.1} (716.3) 4.9 {3,840.3)
278.8 212.2 - 491.0
{2,840.3) (504.1) 4.9) (3,349.3)

United Utilities Water PLC
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1 Accounting policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently
in dealing with items which are considered material in relation to
the Company's financial statements.

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of United Utilities Water PLG have been
prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards and,
axcept for the treatment of certain grants and contributions (note
{f), with the Companies Act 1985. The Company disposed of its
only subsidiary (North West Water Finance PLC, a dormant
subsidiary} in the period and therefore ne longer produces
consclidated group accounts.

{b} Cash

In the cash flow statement and related notes, cash includes cash
at bank, deposits repayable on demand and cverdrafts. Deposits
are repayable on demand if they are, in practice, available within
24 hours without penalty.

{c) Turnover

Turmover represents the income receivable in the ordinary course
of business for services provided and excludes VAT, Where
relavant this includes an estimate of the sales value of units
supplied ta customers betweaen the date of the fast meter reading
and the year end.

(d) Research and development
Expenditure on research and development is expensed as
incurred,

{e) Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets comprise infrastructure assets (mains,
sewers, impounding and pumped raw water storage reservoirs,
dams, sludge pipelines and sea outfalls) and other assets
(inclucing properties, overground plant and equipment and
cperational assets).

@ infroatruclure 205018

Infrastructure assets comprise a network of water and wastewater
systems. Expenditure on infrastructure assets relating to increases
in capacity or enhancements of the network and on maintaining
the operating capability of the network in accordance with defined
standards of service is treated as an addition, which is included at
cost after deducting related grants and contributions.

Expenditure on maintaining the operating capability of the
netwaork in accordance with defined standards of service is
classified as infrastructure renewals expenditure.

The depreciation charge for infrastructure assets is the
estimated level of annual expenditure required to maintain the
operating capability of the network which is based on the
Company's independently certified asset maragement plan.

Employee costs incurred in implementing the capital schemes
of the Company are capitalised within fixed asssts.

i Oinher assels

Additions are included at cost. Freehold land is not depreciated.
Other assets are depreciated by writing off their cost less their
estimated residual value evenly over their estimated economic
lives based on management’s judgement and experienice, which
are principally as follows:
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Buildings 30-60 years

Operational assets 5-80 years
Fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment 3-40 years
Computer software 3-10 years

(4] Carrying value of tangible fixed assets

The carrying values of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for
impafrment wherever circumstances indicate that the carrying
value of such assets may not be recoverable,

{f) Grants and contributions

Capital contributions towards infrastructure assets are deducted
from the cost of those assets. This is not in accordance with
Schedule 4 to the Companies Act 1985 under which the
infrastructure assets should be stated at their purchase price or
production cost and the capital contributions treated as deferred
income and released to the profit and loss account over the useful
life cf the corresponding assets.

The directors are of the opinion that, aithough provision is
made for depreciation of infrastruciure assets (sse note (g}),
these assets have no finite economic lives and the capital
contributions would therefore remain in the balance sheet in
perpetuity. The treatment ctherwise required by the Companies
Act 1885 would not present a true and fair view of the Gompany’s
effective investrment in infrastructure assets. The financial effect of
this accounting policy is set owt in note 10,

Grants and contributions receivable in respect of other
tangble fixed assets are treated as deferrad income, which is
credited to the profit and loss account cver the estimated
economic lives of the refated assets.

(g9) Leased assets
Assets financed by leasing arrangements which transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lesses
{finance lzases) are capitalised in the balance sheet and the
corresponding capital cost is shown as an obligation to the lessor.
Leasing repayments comprise both a capital and a finance
element. Where the lease is of a fixed interest rate nature, the
finance element is written off to the profit and loss account so as
to preduce an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on
the cutstanding abligation. Where the lease is of a floating interest
rate nature, the finance element written off to the profit and loss
account reflects the floating interest rate charge incurred during
the pericd cn the outstanding obligation. Such assets are
depreciated over the shoHer of their estimated useful lives and the
petiod of the lease.

Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss
account on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

(h) Fixed asset investments
Fixed asset investments arg stated at the lower of cost and
recoverable amount.

(i} Stocks
Stocks are stated at cost less any provisicn necessary to
recognise damage and obsolescence.

(i) Gurrent asset investments

Current asset investments are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

United Utilities Water PLC




MNotes 1o the accounts {continued}

1 Accounting policies {continued)

(k) Pensions

The Company participates in a number of defined benefit
schemes operated by United Utilities PLC, which are independent
of the Company’s finances, for the substantial majority of its
employees. Actuarial valuations of the schemes are carried out as
determined by the trustees at intervals of not more than three
years, the rates of contribution payable and the pension cost
being determined on the advice of the actuaries, having regard to
the resuits of these valuations. In any intervening years, the
actuaries review the continuing appropriateness of the
contripution rates.

The cost of providing pensions is expensed over employees’
working lives. Variations from regular cost are allocated over the
average remaining service lives of current employees. Any
difference between tha charge 1o the profit and loss account in
respect of funded plans and the contributions payable to each
plan is recorded in the balance sheet as a prepayment or
provigion.

In addition, the Company participates in a defined coniribution
scheme operated by United Utilities PLC, for which the amount
charged to the profit and loss account in respect of pension costs
is the contributions payable in the year. Differences between
contributions payable in the year and contributions paid are
shown as either accruals or prepayments in the balance sheet.

The Company has included the disclosure requirements of
FRS 17 ‘Retirement Benefits' together with details of pension and
funding arrangements in note 22,

() Taxation

Current tax, including UK corporation {ax and foreign tax, is
provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the
tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of timing differences that
have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where
transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax
in the future or a right to pay less tax in the future have occurred.
Timing differences are differences between the Company's taxable
profits and its results as stated in the financial siatements that
arise from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments in
periods different from those in which they are recognised in the
financial statements.

Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are
expected to apply in the periods in which the timing differences
are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance shest
date. Deferred tax is measured ¢n a discounted basls to reflect
the time value of money over the period between the balance
sheet date and the dates on which it is estimated that the
underlying timing differences will reverse. The discount rates used
refiect the post-tax yields to maturity that can be obtained on
government bonds with similar maturity dates and currencies to
those of the deferred tax assets or liabilities.
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{m} Financial instruments

Dabl ingtnanenis

New borrowings are stated at net proceeds received after
deduction of issue costs. The issue costs of debt instruments are
amortised at a constant rate over the life of the instrument.

interast rale swaps and fnancial futures

Interest rate swap agreements and financial futures are used to
manage interest rate exposure. Instruments that are designed as
a hedge of debt are accounted for on an accruals basis, with
amounts payable or receivable in respect of these instruments
being recognised as adjustments to interest expense of the
designated liability.

Realised gains and iosses that occur from the early
termination of such instruments designated as a hedge are
deferred and amortised to interest expense over the period of the
hedged position, to the extent that the original liability remains
outstanding.

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the notional amount
of the Company’s interest rate swaps and financial futures must
not exceed the amount of its existing variable rate debt, and must
change the interest rate characteristics of the underlying debt
while the contractual maturities cannct exceed the maturities of
the debt.

Currendy SWApS

The Company enters into currency swaps to manage its exgosure
1o fluctuations in currency rates. Principle amounts are revalued at
exchange rates ruling at the date of the Company balance sheet
and are included in the sterling value of the debt. In order for such
swaps to qualify for hedge accounting, the forward
confract/currency swap must relate to an existing asset, liability or
firm commitment, be in the same currency as the hedged item
and reduce the risk of foreign currency exchange movements to
the Company’s operations. Where they do, exchange gains and
losses are taken directly to reserves and are included in the
staterment of total recognised gains and Iosses in accardance with
SSAP 20 'Foreign currency transactions.”

{n) Environmental remediation
Envircnmental expenditure that refates to current or future
revenues is expensed or capitalised as appropriate. Expenditure
that relates to an existing condition caused by past operaticns
and does not contribute to current or future earnings is expensed.
Liabilities for environmental costs are recognised when there is
a legal or constructive obligation, environmental assessments or
clean-ups are probable, and the associated costs can be
reasonably estimated. Generally, the timing of these provisions
coincides with the commitment to a formal plan of action or, if
earlier, on divestment or on closure of inactive sites.

United UHilities Water PLC
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

2 Segmental information
The Company operates in the United Kingdom in one class of business as stated in the Directors' report.

3 Net operating costs

2005 2004
£m £m
Employee costs:
Wages and salaries 109.2 4.7
Saclal security costs 8.6 7.8
Pension contributions (note 22) 14.9 7.2
132.7 109.7
Capital schemes 45.2) {41.6}
87.5 68.1
Depreciation: |
Owned fixed assets 2005 169.1
Fixed assets held under finance leases 1.7 1.7
Non-infrastructure depreciation 202.2 170.8
Infrastructure depreciation 4741 88.3
249.3 2501
Raw materials and consumables 28.8 274
Other operating costs include:
Other operating costs 299.9 300.3
Auditors' rernuneration 0.2 0.2
Armortisaticn of grants and contributions 4.1) 3.7
Research and development ’ 0.5 0.6
Cperating leases:
- hire of plant and maghinery 20 1.2
- land and huildings 1.4 0.9
Exceptional charge - restructuring provision (note 17) 14.1 -
Gther income (note 4] (3.4) 5.9)
310.6 293.6
Total net operating costs 676.2 648.2

Managed service fees and asset charges from parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings are contained within other operating costs. Fees
payable to Delcitte & Touche LLP for non-audit services during the year were £0.4 mifion, primarily refating to regufatory and advisory
work (2004 - £0.1 milion).

Employee costs including business restructuring excepticnal items, net of charges to capital schemas, amount to £101.6 million
(2004 - £68.1 milliory.
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Notes to he accounts {continued)

4 Other income {see note 3)

2005 2004

£m £m

Profit on disposal of fixed assets 241 45
Net rents receivable 1.3 1.4
34 59

Cther income

5 Directors

The aggregate emoluments of the directors in 2005 amounted to £1,566,426 in respect of services allocated to the Company (2004 -
£1,152,012). Emoiuments comprise salaries, fees, taxable benefits and the value of short-term incentive awards. The emcluments of the
highest paid director, G Carnish, in respect of services allocated to the Company amounted to £382,312. In 2004, R D Armstrong was
the highest paid director, with total emoluments of £277,612, and accrued pensicn entitement of £98,154 per annum. The emoluments
of J E Roberts and S G Batey are not included in the aggregate emoluments figures. The emoluments of these two directors are
disclosed in the accounts of United Utilities PLC.

There were 7 directors (2004 - nil who had long term incentive plans which vested during the year ended 31 March 2005, with an
aggregate vaiue of £330,868 (2004 - nil}.

At 31 March 2005 and the prior year, the directors and their families had the following interests, all of which were beneficial interests,
in the ordinary and A shares and options 10 subscribe for ordinary and A shares in United Utilities PLC (details of the interests of J E
Robens, S G Batey and C Cornish in United Utilities PLC are disclosed in that company’s accounts).

At 31 March 2065 At 31 March 2004 or date of appointment

Interest in shares Interest in sharas

Ordinaty shares A Shares Executive Employee Ordinary A Shares Executive Employee

option sharesave shares aption sharesave

scheme scheme scherne scheme

R O Armstrong 30,080 4,569 - 2,909 16,125 7,480 3,235 2,809
J A Barnes 13,534 2,570 25,645 3,545 8,765 1,141 25,645 3,645
3 Beaumont 10,185 - 27,547 2,909 7522 2,229 27,696 2,909
M Beesley 5,299 456 14,494 1,178 4,232 456 14,494 2,001
K Budinger - - - 1,213 - - - 1,213
G Dixon 4,584 1,802 12,061 3,169 3,450 1,802 1,752 3,169
C H Elphick 19,007 - - 3,556 8,308 7,683 27,306 3,558
P G 8 Entwistle 1,500 . 832 - - 1,500 832 - -
J Lang 543 70 - 2,909 318 70 - 2,909
D & Morton JP - - - - - - - -

Four directors exarcised options during the period (2004 - one),

Details of the employee sharesave scheme and the executive share option scheme operated by United Utilities PLC are given in that
company's accounts.
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MNotes to the accounts {continued)

5 Directors (continued)

With the exception of G Dixen, all executive directors are members of, and contribute to the United Utilities Pension Scheme which is an
exempt approved pension scheme with defined benefit and defined contribution sections of membership. It contains sections which are
open to ali eligibie employees. It provides pensions and other benefits to members within Revenue & Customs limits. All the current
executive directors are members and contribute to the Scheme. The defined benefit scheme provides a pension for ihem on normal
retirement at age 80 of betwesn 1/30th and 1/45th of pensionable earnings for each cormpleted year of service. The maximum pensicn is
two thirds of pensionable earnings. Early retirement is possible from the age of 50 if the Company agrees.

G Dixen is a member of, and contributes to, the Electricity Supply Pension Scheme, a defined benefit scheme which provides on
normal retirement at the age of 60 a pension equal ta 1/80th of pensionable earnings for each comyleted year of service (plus 3/80th
cash). Early retirement is possible from the age of 50 if the Company agrees.

The Finance Act 1989 restricts the pensicns benefits that can be paid by the Scheme to directors who joined the Company after 1
June 1989 because the sarnings cap limits pensionable earnings for calcutating benefits. The Company has put in place for some of the
execulive directors affected separate arrangements, the effect of which is to provide for them the same total pension benefits as for those
executives who are not limited by the cap. These arrangements are unfunded.

6 Employees
Average number of persons employed during 1he year 2005 2004
Licensed utility operations 3,430 3,249
7 Net interest payable and other similar charges
2005 2004
£m £m

Interest payable and similar charges:
On bank loans, overdrafts and other loans 213.4 170.1
Cn finance leases 3.3 2.9
Parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 40.0 20.6
Total interest payable and similar charges 256.7 202.6
Investment income:
income received from current asset investments (3.1) (8.0)
Interest receivable and simiiar income

- Parent and fellow subsidiary underiakings {9.8) 6.4)

- External (28.9) 4.6
Net interest payable and other similar charges 214.9 183.6

United Utilities Water PLC
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Matos by the acoounts (continued
4

8 Taxation on profit on ordinary activities

{a) Analysis of charge/{credit) in the year

2005 2004
£m £m

Current tax:
UK corporation tax at 30% - (16.1)
Prior year tax adjustments 1.0) 4.9
Total ordinary current tax (1.0 (11.2)
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of timing differences 78.9 73.2
increase in discount (36.8) (98.0)
Pricr year tax adiustrenis 1.0 (4.9
Total ordinary deferred tax excluding exceptional tems 43.1 29.7)
Tax charge/{credit) on profit on ordinary activities excluding exceptional items 421 {40.9)
Tax on exceptional ifems
Deferred tax:
Qriginaticn and reversal of timing differences {4.2) -
Total fax on exceplional items (4.2) -
Tax charge/{credit) on profit on ordinary activities 37.9 (40.9)

Total deferred tax for the period, incuding exceptional items, is £38.9 milion charge (2004 - £29.7 million credit).

The prior year tax adjustments relate to the agreement of prior vear tax returns.

(b) Factors affecting tax charge/{creditj for the year

The table below recondiles the notional tax charge at the UK corporation tax rate to the actual charge for taxation.

2005 2004

£m £m

Profit on ordinary activities before tax 2340 197.5
% %

LK corporation tax rate 30.0 30.0
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation (31.2} (60.2)
Utllisation of tax logses 1.3 1.1
Other iming differences 0.1 12.0
Prior year tax adjustments (0.4) 25
Non-taxable income 0.2} (1.1
Actual current tax rate (0.4} 5.7)

United Utilities Water PLC
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Notes to the accounts {conti

!
L
=3
e
—
o
&
L
St

9 Dividends
2005 2004
£m £m
fnterim diividend of 12.83 pence per share (2004 - 15.44 pence) 68.3 88,7
Finat dividend of 25,85 pence per share recommended (2004 - 25,36 pence) 1375 134.9
Preference share dividend 7.00 pence per share (2004 - 7.00 pence) 9.1 9.1
2149 210.7

United Utilities Water PLC has increased its ordinary dividend payment to United Utilities North West PLC (formerly United Utilities Service
Delivery PLC) by 2.1 per cent to £205.8 millicn for the year. The dividend policy this year is consistent with the Company's performance
and the management of the economic risks of the business. During the prior year, United Utflities Water PLC received £100 miliion of
new share capital. Had the 100 millon shares not been issued, the total dividend this year would have remained the same and the pence
per sharg on the interim dividend would have been 15,81 pence (2004 - 15.44 pence). United Utilities Water PLC has also paid 2
preference dividend of £9.1 million for the year to United Utilities North West PLC.

10 Tangible fixed assets

Fixtures, fittings Assets in
Land and Infrasiructurs Operationai 1ools and course of
buildings assets structurss aquipment construction Total
£m m £m £m £m £m
Cost:
At 1 Aprii 2004 2183 3,630.1 2,880.9 576.4 996.1 8,208.8
Additions 1.0 111.3 62.9 33.2 498.6 707.0
Grants and contributions - (11.4) - - - (11.4)
Transfers 2.2 145.7 250.1 39.9 {437.9) -
Disposals 9.3) - (7.3) (76.7) - 83.3)
At 31 March 2005 207.2 3,875.7 3,186.6 572.8 1,058.8 8,901.1
Depreciation:
As 1 April 2004 63.7 1,229.5 8155 343.6 - 2,452.3
Charge for the year 81 471 119.8 74.5 - 249.3
Disposals 9.2) - 17.4) (76.5) - (93.1)
At 31 March 2005 62.6 1,276.6 927.7 3416 - 2,608.5
Net book value:
At 31 March 2005 1446 2,599.1 2,258.9 231.2 1,058.8 6,292.6
At 31 March 2004 149.8 2,400.6 2,065.4 232.8 998.1 5,846.5

Grants and contributions received relating to infrastructure assets have been deducted from the cost of fixed assets in order to show a
true and fair view. As a consequence, the cost of fixed assets, as adjusted for ameortisation, is £106.3 millien (2004 - £84.9 million) lower
than it would have been had this treatment not been adopted.
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MNotes to the accounts {continued)

10 Tangible fixed assets (continued}
Infrastructure renewals
Expenditure on maintaining the operating capability of the water and wastewater network in accordance with defined standards of service

is capitalised, and depreciation is charged on the expenditure over the period of the Asset Management Plan, in accordance with FRS 15.
The amount of excess depreciation over expenditure is as follows:

£m

Excess depreciation over expenditure at 1 April 2004 {7.6)
Expenditure on mairtaining the network in the year 54.7

Depreciation for the year {47.1}
Excess depreciation over expenditure at 31 March 2005 . -
Within tangible fixed assets are assets held under finance leases at the following amounts:

2005 2004

£ £m

Cost:
Operational structures 81.0 132.2
Fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment - 0.9
At 31 March 81.0 13341
Accumulated depreciation: :
Cperaticnal structures {11.4) (60.9)
Fixtures, fitlings, tools and eguipment - (0.8)
At 31 March {$1.4} 81.7)
Net book valus:
Operational struciures 69.6 71.3
Fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment - 01
At 31 March 69.6 71.4
The depreciation charge for the year for assets held under finance leases is £1.7 million (2004 - £1.7 million).

2005 2004

f£rn em

Capital commitments:
Contracted but not provided for 2258 439.5

United Utilities Water PLC
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Notes to the aocounts {continued)

11 Fixed asset investments

Shares in subsidiary Other
undertakings investments Total
£m £m £m
Cost at 1 April 2004 - 0.4 0.4
Disposals - 1) {0.1)
Cost at 31 March 2005 - 0.3 0.3
The Company disposed of its only subsidiary, North West Water Finance PLC {a dormant company), in the year.
Details of cther investments with regard to the Company, all of which are unlisted and registered in England and Wales are:
Other Investmants Description of holding Proportion held Nature of businaess
WRc plc 'A' Ordinary shares of £1 each 9.84% Water and wastewater
research
8% convertibie unsecured 26.54%
loan stock 2014
Paypoint Network Limited Ordinary shares of 1 pence each 0.06% Cash collection service
Deferred shares of 1 pence each 0.06%
12 Debtors
2005 2004
£m £m
Trade debtors 95.2 98.1
Amounts owed by parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 57.5 58.0
Cther debtors 38.3 39.4
Prepayments and accrued income 175.5 58.6
366.5 255.1

Amounts owed by parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings includes £40.7 million floating rate loans (2004 - £40.7 million). Within other
debtors is £19.9 million (2004 - £19.0 million) and within prepayments is £105.1 million {2004 - ni) which fall due after more than one

year.

13 Current asset investments

2005 2004

£m £m

Cagh on deposit 191.0 278.8
Managed funds and other short-term investments 300.0 -

491.0 278.8

Maturity profile of current asset investments is overnight to 12 months, with amounts repayable on maturity.

United Utilities Water PLC
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Notes {0 the accounts {continued)

14 Creditors : amounts falling due within one year

2005 2004
£m £m
Loans (note 19) 254.1 453
Bank overdrafts (note 19) 13.0 385
Obligations under finance leases {note 19) 0.8 -
Trade creditors 25,7 31.1
Amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 286.0 50.8
Dividends 137.5 134.9
QOther creditors 0.7 1.7
Taxaticn and soclal security 275 15.3
Deferred grants and contributions (note 16) 4.3 3.7
Accruals and deferred income 4253 445.7
1,1749 767.0

Inciuded in amounts owed fo parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings is £212.1 million (2004 - nil} included within term loans, and £15.8
mifion (2004 - £12.3 million) included within temporary borrowings, in balances less than one year within note 19,

15 Creditors : amounts falling due after more than one year

2005 2004

£m £m

Loans (note 19) 2,862.6 2,535.9
Obligations under finance leases (note 19) 80.2 81.0
Amounis owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings (note 19) 442.4 454.5
QOther creditors 25 2.1
Deferred grants and contributions (note 18) 79.6 74.9

3,467.3 3,148.4

16 Deferved grants and contributions

£m
At 1 April 2004 78.6
Received in the year 9.4
Profit and loss account 4.1)
At 31 March 2005 83.9
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17 Provision for liabilities and charges
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Restructuring  Deferred Tax (note 18} Total
£m £m £m
At 1 April 2004 - 219.3 219.3
Charged to the profit and loss account 141 38.9 53.0
Utilised in the year 8.7 - {8.7)
At 31 March 2005 5.4 258.2 263.6
The majority of the restructuring provision is expected to be utilised within the next 12 months.
18 Deferred tax (see note 17)
2005 2004
£m £m
Accelerated capital allowances 1,139.5 1,063.4
Short-term timing differences {78.0) (77.6)
Undiscounted provision for deferred tax 1,061.5 985.8
Discount {803.3} (766.5)
Discounted provision for deferred tax 268.2 219.3
19 Borrowings
2005 2004
£m £m
Bank overdrafts and temporary borrowings 28.8 50.8
Term loans 3,771.2 3,035.7
Finance leases 81.0 81.0
3,881.0 3,167.5
Repayments fall due as follows:
Yaar ending 2005 Year ending 2004
31 March £m 31 March em
After five years 2011+ 1,849.0 2070+ 1,255.4
From four to five years 2010 159.1 200%g 4176
From three 1o four years 2009 4179 2008 £886.8
From two to three years 2008 909.8 2007 47.9
From one to two years 2007 49.4 2008 463.7
After more than one year 3,385.2 30714
Within one year 2006 495.8 2005 96.1
3,881.0 3,167.5

United Utilities Water PLC
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

19 Borrowings (continued)

Inciuded in the above are finance lease payments falling due as follows:

2005 2004
£m £m

Less than cne year 0.8 -
Between one and five yvears 275 18.5
After five years 52.7 61.5
Totat 81.0 81.0

Loans repayable by instaiments after five years comprise bank and other loans repayable between 2011 and 2053. Interest rates range
from 1.135 per cent 1o 14.83 per cent {2004 - 0.75 per cent to 14.83 per cent) on £1,396.4 million {2004 - £1,041.0 million) and are at
floating rates on £452.6 million (2004 - £214.4 million).

Bank overdrafts and temporary borrowings
The Company had available unutifised committed bank facilities of £365 million (2004 - £315 million). The amounts currently unutilised
axpire as follows:

£m
Less than one year 250
One to two vears -
After two years 340.0
Total 365.0
The analysis of net debt prior to the effect of derivative instruments is as follows:
Baorrowings Bormowings

at 31 March at 31 March

2005 2004

£m £m

Fixed rate borrowings
Sterling 1,233.5 1,047.1
United States Dollars” 454.6 454.5
Euros* : 1,463.7 1,086.5
Japanese Yen* 104.2 102.2

3,256.0 2,690.3
Floating rate borrowings
Sterling 400.2 438.6
United States Dollars* 200.0 13.8
Japanese Yen* 123 12.3
Hong Kong Dollars* 125 12.5

625.0 477.2

Floating rate parent undertaking loan - stetling {(40.7} (40.7)
Short term investments - sterling (491.0) {278.8)
Cash at bank - (7.7
Net debst at 31 March 3,349.3 2,840.3

* Currency items are recorded in the balance sheet at the hedged rate.
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Motes to the accounts (continued)

19 Borrowings (continued)

Taking into account derivative instruments, net debt can be analysed as follows:

Weighted average interest rate Weighted average pericd

Borrowings at 31 March at which borrowings are fixed for which inferest is fixed

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

£m €m % % Years Years

Fixed rate barrowings - sterling 3,386.9 2,777.8 6.0 71 4.8 2.3
Floating rate borrowings - sterling 494.1 3829
3,881.0 3,167.5
Fioating rate parent undertaking loan - sterling (40.7) 40.7)
Short term investments - sterling (491.0) (278.8)
Cash at bank - 7.7
Net debt at 31 March 3,349.3 2,840.3

Floating rate borrowings are based on LIBOR.

Financial instruments and risk management

The primary financial risks faced by the Company are exchange rate risk and interest rate risk. The board has reviewed and agreed
policies for managing each of these risks as summarised below. The board has also approved all of the classes of financial instruments
used by the Company. United Utllities PLC's treasury function, which is authorised to conduct the day-to-day treasury activities of the
Group, reponts at least annually 1o the board.

The Company uses a variety of financial instruments, including derivatives, to raise finance for its operations and to manage the risks
arising from those operations.

The Company barrows in the major global debt markets in a range of currencies at both fixed and floating rates of interest, using
derivatives where appropriate to generate the desired effective currency profile and inderest basis. The effect of the use of derivatives s
iliustrated above.

Under an interest rate swap, the Company agrees with another party to exchange at specific intervals the difference between fixed
rate and floating rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed notional principal ameunt. The notional principal of these
instruments reflects the extent of the Company’s involverment in the instruments, but does not represent its exposure to credit risk which
is assessed by reference to the fair value.

Under a currency rate swap, the Company agrees with another party to exchange the principal amount of two currencies together
with interest amounts in the two currencies agreed by reference to a specific interest rate basis and the principal amount. The principal of
these instruments reflects the extent of the Company’s involvement in the instruments, but does not represent its exposure to credit risk,
which is assessed by reference to the fair value.

All fransactions are undertaken to manage the risks arising from underlying business activities and no speculative trading is
undertaken.

The counterparties to these instruments generally consist of financial institutions and other bodies with goed credit ratings. Although
-the Company is potentially exposed to credit ioss in the event of non-performance by counterparties, such credit risk is controlled
through credit rating reviews of the counterparties and limiting the total amount of exposure to any one panly. The Company does not
believe it is exposed to any material concentrations of credit risk.

As noted above, the Company uses derivatives to manage its exposure 10 curency risk on its borrowings. Accordingly, the Company
has no material unhedged foreign currency exposures,

Financial instruments utilised by the Company can be summarised as folows:
a) Interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps are used sofely to manage floating rate borrowings in order to reduce the financial risk of the Company from potential
future changes in medium-term interest rates.
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19 Borrowings {continued)

b} Financial futures
Financial futures are used to manage the Company’s exposure to possible future changes in short-term interest rates.

c) Forward contracts
The Company generally hedges foreign exchange transaction exposures up to cne year forward. Hedges are put in place using forward
contracts at the time that the forecast exposure becomes reasonably certain.

d) Currency swaps
The Company uses currency swaps 1o hedge currency exposure where debt is raised in one currency to fund in a different currency.

Fair values of financial instruments

Fair value estimates are made at a specific peint in time, based on relevant market inforrmation and information about the financial
instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgement and therefore cannot
be determined precisely. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

2005 2008 2004 2004
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
£m £m £m Em
Short term debt and current portion of leng term debt 495.8 - 495.8 96.1 96.1
Long term debt 3,385.2 3,485.9 3,071.4 3,249.8
3,881.0 3,981.7 3,167.5 3,345.9
Interest rate swaps - 36.2 - 13.0
Foreign exchange contracts and currency swaps - {50.7) - (107.4)
Total borrowings 3,881.0 .- 3,966.2 3,167.5 3,251.5

Fair values have been estimated using the foliowing methods and assumptions:

Current assets and liabilities
Financial instruments included within current assets and liabilities (excluding cash and borrowings) are generally short-term in nature and
accordingly their fair values approximate to their book values.

Long term receivables and liabilities
The fair values of financial instruments included within long-term receivables and liabilities {excluding borrowings) are based on discounted
cash flows using appropriate market interest rates.

Net borrowings and non-equity interests {excluding foreign exchange contracts)

The carrying values of cash and short-term borrowings and current asset investments approximate to their fair values because of the
shori-term maturity of these instruments. The fair value of quoted long-term borrowings and guaranteed preferred securities is based on
year end mid-market quoted prices. The fair value of other long-term barrowings is estimated by discounting the future cash flows to net
present values using appropriate market interest rates prevailing at the year end.

Currency and interest rate swaps

The Company enters into currency and interest rate swaps i order to manage its foreign currency and interest rate exposures. The
carrying value of debt is shown in the balanca sheet at the hedged rate, The impact of the hedged currency rates as opposed to
transiation at year end exchange rates is £17.4 miflion (2004 - £5.1 million). The fair value of these financial instruments was estimated by
discounting the future cash flows to net present values using appropriate market rates prevafling at the year end. The fair values of
currency and interest rate swaps exclude the related accrued interest receivables and payables.

Hedges
Unreccgnised gains and losses on financial assets and liabilities for which hedge accounting has been used at the balance sheet date
were £151.8 million and £136.3 million respectively (2004 - £182.3 million and £88.0 milion).

The Company anticipates that £85.2 million of these gains and £62.1 million of these losses will be realised in the forthcoming
financial year (2004 - £20.3 million and £53.7 millien). Of the unrecognised gains and losses on hedges as at 1 April 2004, the net loss in
the profit and loss account for the year ended 31 March 2005 was £44.2 million (2004 - £28.0 million).
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20 Called up share capital and share premium accounts

2005 2004
£m £m
Authorised share capital

650,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 650.0 850.0
223,437,000 preference shares of £1 each 223.4 223.4

Allotted and fully paid share capital
531,930,000 crdinary shares of £1 each (2004 - 431,930,000 ordinary shares of £1 each) 531.9 5319
130,000,000 7 per cent preference shares of €1 each 130.0 130.0
93,437,000 zero per cent preference shares of £1 each 93.4 93.4
755.3 755.3
Share premium account 647.8 647.8

Preference shareholders are not entitlied to receive notice of, attend or vote at, any general meeting of the Company. However, preference
shareholders receive priority to other classes of shareholders on a winding up, liquidation or other return of capital to shareholders of the
Company. The preference shares have a redemption date of 1 Oclober 2099,

21 Profit and loss account

2005

£m

At 1 April 2004 853.1
Loss for the year (8.8)
At 31 March 2005 844.3

22 Pensions

The Company participates in a number of pension schemes principally in the UK. The major schemes are funded defined benefit schemes —
the United Utilities Pension Scheme (‘UUPS') and the United Utilities Group of the Electricity Supply Pension Scheme (ESPS) ({the
‘Behemes”, of which the ESPS s closed to new employeas. UUPS also includes a defined contribution section which constitutes less than
(.5 per cent of the total asset value. The assets of these Schemes are held in trust funds independent of Urited Utilities PLC’s and the
Company’s finances.

For UUPS and ESPS, the pension cost and asset under the accounting standard SSAP 24 have been assessed in accordance with the
advice of a firm of actuaries, Mercer Human Resource Consulting, using the projected unit method. For this purpose, the actuarial
assumptions adepted are based upon investment growth of 7.6 per cent per annum pre-retirement and 5.6 per cent per annum post-
retirement; pay growth of 4.1 per cent per annum for UUPS and 4.3 per cent per annum for ESPS; and increases to pensions in payment
and deferred pensions of 2.8 per cent per annum. The actuarial value of the assets was taken as the market value of the assets.

The last actuarial valuations of the Schemes were carried out as at 31 March 2004. The combined market value of United Utilities PLC's
share of the assets of the Schemes at the valuation date was £1,839.9 milion. Using the assumptions adopted for SSAP 24, the combined
actuarial value of the assets represented 97 per cent of the value of the accrued benefits, after allowing for expected future earnings
increases. In deriving the pension cost under SSAP 24, the deficit in the Schemes was spread over the future working lifetime of the
existing members.

For UUPS, the employer’s contributions have been assessed in accordance with the advice of Mercer Human Resource Consuiting
using different actuarial assumptions from those described above. For ESPS, the employer’s contributions have been assessed in
accordance with the advice of a fim of actuaries, Hewitt Bacon and Woodrow, using different actuarial assumpticns and metheds from
those described above,

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Company contributed to UUPS at rates which ranged from 16.1 per cent to 30.3 per cent
of pensionable salaries dependent upon benefit category. In addition, further contributions were made to cover the cost of additional
severance benefits granted. During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Company contributed to ESPS at a rate of 19.0 per cent of
pensionable salaries.
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22 Pensions {continued)

On 31 March 2005, the Company made lump sum payments cf £110.9 milicn and £2.9 milien to UUPS and ESPS respectively. The
payments werg in liew of the estimated Company contributions that would have been payable for defined benefit members over the flve
years from 1 April 2005, Subject 1o the results of the actuarial valuations at 31 March 2007, Company contributions will resume from 1
April 2010, In the meantime, the Company will continue to pay contributions in respect of the defined contribution members and
insurance premiums. Other payments will be made by the Company in accordance with the funding agreement between the Trustee and
United Utilities PLC.

The Company also operates a series of unfunded, unapproved retirement benefit schemes. The cost of the unfunded unapproved
retirement benefit schemes is included in the total pension cost on a basis consistent with SSAP 24 and the assumptions set out above.

The total pension cost for the period was £23.6 million of which £8.7 million is included within the business restructuring exceptional
provision {2004 - £7.2 milion). A prepayment of £125.0 million is included in the balance sheet at 31 March 2005 (2004 - £18.0 million).

EREE TV travsitiongd disclosure

The Company is unable to identify its share of the Schemes’ assets and liabilities on a consistent and reascnable basis. As permitted by FRS
17 ‘Retirerent Benefits’, these Schemeas will be accounted for by the Company when the accounting standard is fully adopted, as if the
Schemes were a defined contribution scheme. Information in respect of the Schemes as a whole for United Utilities PLC is set out below.

The pensicn cost figures used in these accounts comply with the current pension cost accounting standard SSAP 24. Under
transitional arrangements of FRS 17 ‘Retirement Bensefits’, United Utilities PLC is required to disclose the following information about its
pension arrangements and the figures that would have been shown under adoption of FRS 17 in the financial statements.

The latest formal valuations of the Schemes were carried out as at 31 March 2004. The valuation of liabilities detailed below has been
derived by projecting forward the position at 31 March 2004 and has been performed by an independent actuary, Mercer Human
Resource Censulting. FRS 17 gives the present value of pension fabilities by discounting pension commitments (including an allowance
for salary growth), at an AA corporate bond yield. The major difference arising between these two methodologies is in the valuation of the
Schemes’ liabilities, which under FRS 17 is higher. Deferred pensions are revalued to retirement age in ling with the Schemes' rules and
statutory requirements. The majer financial assumptions used by the actuary were as follows:

At 31 March AU31March At 31 March

2005 2004 2003
Discount rate 5.40% 5.50% 5.50%
Pensionable salary growth - UUPS 4.10% 4.30% 4.00%
Pensionable salary growth - ESPS 4.30% 4.30% 4.00%
Pension increases 2.80% 2,80% 2.50%
Price inflation 2.80% 2.80% 2.50%

At 31 March 2005 At 31 March 2004 At 31 March 2003

Expected Expected Expected

rates of Totat rates of Total rates of Total

return £m return £m ralurn £m
Equities 7.60% 1,468.0 7.60% 1,268.9 7.50% 1,008.0
Property 7.60% 1.3 7.60% 2.1 7.50% 3.5
Bonds 5.40% 3438 5.50% 193.2 5.50% 217.4
Gilis 4.60% 428.2 4.60% 383.4 4.50% 3143
Cther 4.60% 61.4 4.60% 1.7 4.50% 242
Market value of assets 2,302.7 1,849.3 1,567.4
Present value of Schemes' ligbilities {2,382.3) (2,227.0) (1,893.2)
Implied deficit in the Schemes {79.6} 377.7) 425.8)
Related deferred tax asset 23.9 113.3 127.7
Net pension liability under FRS 17 {55.7) (264.4) (298.1)
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Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
buildings machinery buildings machingry
2005 2005 2004 2004
£m £m £m £m
The Company is committed to making the
following payments during the year:
Non-cancellable oparating leases which expire:
Within one year - 0.2 - 0.4
Between two and five years - 1.2 - 1.0
After five years 0.9 - 0.9 -
0.9 1.4 0.9 1.4

24 Related party transactions

In accordance with the exemption set out in Financial Reporting Standard 8 { Related Party Transactions), the Company has not
disclosed transactions with its ultimate holding company cr any members of the United Lhilities PLC group. United Utilities PLC is the

ultimate controlling party as defined by FRS 8.

25 Ultimate parent undertaking

The accounts of the Company are consolidated in the Group accounts of the ultimate parent undertaking, United Utilities PLC, a
company registered in England and Wales. Copies of the accounts of United Utilities PLC may be cbtained from the Company Secretary,

United Utilities PLC, Dawson House, Great Sankey, Warrington WAS 3LW.
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The Regulatory Accounts on pages 29 to 44 have been prepared
in accordance with the reguirements of Regulatory Accounting
Guidelines issued by the Director General of Water Services.
Turnover and net operating assets for the non-appeinted
business, as defined by Regulatory Accounting Guidelines, are not
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eguilatory accounting information

material and, therefore, the current cost profit and 0ss account,
balance sheet and cash flow statement show the figures for the
total Company.

independent accountants’ report

to the Director General of Water Services ("the Reguiator”) and United Utilities Water PLC (“the Company™).

We have audited the Regulatory Accounts of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2005 which comprise;

e the regulatory historical cost accounting statements,
comprising the reguiatory historical cost profit and loss
account and the regulatory historical cost balance sheet; and

* the regulatory curent cost accounting statements, comprising
the current cost profit and loss account, the current cost
halance sheet, the current cost cash flow statement and the
related notes numbered 1 to 11 to the current cost financial
staterments including note 1 regarding the accounting policies
on which the Regulatory Accounts have been prepared.

This report is made, on terms that have been agreed, sclealy to the
Company and the Reguiator in orcler to meet the requirements of
Condition F of the Instrument of appointment granted by the
Secretary of State for the Environment te the Company as a water
and sewerage undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1991 ({the
“Regulatory Licence”). Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Company and the Regulator those
matters that we have agreed to state to them in our report, in
crder (a) to assist the Company to meet its obligation under the
Regulatory Licence to procure such a report and {b) to facilitate
the carrying oui by the Regulator ¢f its regulatory functions, and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we dc
not accept or assume respensibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Regulator, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.

Basis of preparation
The Regulatory Accounts have bheen prepared in accordance with
Condition F of the Regulatory Licence and the Regulatory
Accounting Guidelines (heing versions 1.03, 2.03, 3.05, 4.02 and
5.03), the accounting policles set out in the statement of
accounting policies and, in the case of the regulatery historical
cost accounting statements, under the histerical cost convention.
The Regulatory Accounts are separate from the statutory
financial statements of the Company. There are differences
between United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles ("UK GAAP") and the basis of preparation of information
provided in the Regulatory Accounts because the Regulatery
Accounting Guidelines specify alternative treatment or disclosure
in certain respects. Where the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines
do not specifically address an accounting issue, then they require
UK GAAP to be followed. Financial information ather than that
prepared whally on the basis of UK GAAP may not necessarily
represent a true and fair view of the financial performance or
financial position of a company as shown in financial statements
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985,

Respective responsibilities of the Regulator, the Directors
and auditors

The nature, form and content of Regulatery Accounts are
determined by the Regulator. It is not appropriate for us to assess

whether the nature of the Information being reported upon is
suitable or appropriate for the Regulator's purposes. Accordingly
we make no such assessment.

The Directors’ responsibiities for preparing the Regulatory
Accounts in accordance with Regulatory Accounting Guidelines
are set out in the statement of directors' responsibilities for
regulatory information on page 5.

Cur responsibility is to audit the Regulatory Accounts in
accordance with United Kingdom Auditing Standards issued by
the Auditing Practices Board, except as stated in the ‘Basis of
opinion’, below and having regard to the guidance contained in
Audit Technical Release 05/03 ‘Reporting to Regulators of
Regulated Entities’.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the regulatory
historical cost accounting statements present fairly, under the
historical cost convention, the revenues and costs, asset and
lizkilities of the Company and its appointed business in
accordance with the Company's Instrument of Appointment and
Regulatory Accounting Guideline 2.03 {Guidelines for the
classification of expenditurs), Regulatory Accounting Guideling
3.05 (Guideline for the contents of regulatory acceunts) and
Regulatory Accounting Guideline 4.02 (Guideline for the analysis
of operating costs and assets) and whether the regulatory current
cost accounting statements on pages 31 to 42 have been
properly prepared in accordance with Regulatory Accounting
Guideline 1.03 {Guideline for accounting for current costs and
regulatory capital values), Regulatory Accounting Guideline 3.05
and Regulatory Accounting Guideline 4.02. We also report to you
if, in cur opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting
records as required by paragraph 3 of Condition F of the
Regulatory Licence or if we have not received all the informaticn
and explanations we require for our audit, and whether the
information provided is in agreement with the appointee’s
underlying accounting records.

We read the other information contained within the Regulatory
Accounts, including any supplementary schedules on which we
do not express an audit opinion, and consider the implications for
our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
material inconsistencies with the Regulatory Accounts. The other
information comprises the performance review, the notes on
regulatory information, and the additional information required by
the licence.

Basis of opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards
issued by the UK Auditing Practices Board, except as noted
below. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the Regulatory
Accounts. It also includes an assessment of the significant
eslimates and judgements made by the Directors in the
preparation of the Regulatory Accounts, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
We planned and performed our audit sc as to obtain all the
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Independent accountants’ report (continued)

information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the Regulatory Accounts are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or
error. However, as the nature, form and content of Regulatory
Accounts are determined by the Regulator, we did not evaluate
the overall adequacy of the presentation of the information, which
would have been required if we were to express an audit opinion
under Auditing Standards.

Quir opinion on the Regulatory Accounts is separate from our
opinion on the statutory accounis of the Company on which we
reported on 15 July 2005, which are prepared for a different
purpose. Our audit report in relation to the statutory accounts of
the Company {our “statutory audit”) was made solely to the
Company's members, as a body, in accordance with section 235
of the Companies Act 1985. Our Statutory audit work was
undertaken se that we might state to the Company’s members
those matters we are required to state 10 them in a Statutory
auditer's report and for no other purpose. In these circumstances,
to the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume any responsibility to anyone other than the Company and
the Company's members &s a body, for cur Statutory audit work,
for our Statutory audit report, or for the opinions we have formed
in respect of that Statutory audit.

The regulatory histerical cost accounting statements on pages
29 to 30 have been drawn up in accordance with Regulatory
Accounting Guideline 3.05 in that infrastructure renewals
accounting as appiied in previous years should continue to be
applied and accordingly that the relevant sections of Financial
Reporting Standards 12 and 15 be disapplied. The effect of this
departure from Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, and a
reconciliation of the balance sheet drawn up on this basis with
that draw upcn under Companies Act 1985 is given on page 30.

Audit Opinion

n our opinion the Regutatory Accounts of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2005 fairly present in accordance with
Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment granted by the
Secretary of State for the Envirenment to the Company as a
water and sewerage undertaker under the Water Industry Act

1991, the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines issued by the
Regulator and the accounting poficies set out on page 34, the
state of the Company's affairs at 31 March 2005 and its profit for
the period then ended.

We are also required to report in respect of various specific
obligations of the Company as set out in its Instrurment of
Appointment. In respect of these cbligations, we report that in ¢ur
opinior:-

a) proper accounting records have been kept by the appointes
as required by paragraph 3 of Condition £ of the instrument;

(b) the information is in agresment with the appointee's
accounting records;

{c) the regulatory historical cost accounting statements on pages
29 to 30 present fairly, under the historicat cost convention,
the revenues and costs, assets and fabilities of the appointee
and its appointed business in accordance with the Company's
Instrument of Appointment and Regulatory Accounting
Guideling 2.03, Regulatory Accounting Guideling 3.05 and
Regulatery Accounting Guideline 4.02 issued by the
Regulatcr; and

z

the regulatory current cost accounting statements on pages
31 to 42 have been properly prepared in accordance with
Regulatory Accounting Guideline 1.03, Regulatory Accounting
Guideline 3.05 and Regulatory Accounting Guideline 4.02
issued by the Regulator,

T
.

T2 LA el S

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chartered Accountants
Manchaster

15 July 2005
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Summarised Company historical cost profit and
inss account

For the year ended 31 March

Note 2005 2004

£m £m
Turnover 1,135.1 1,028.3
Operating costs {691.1) (654.1)
Operatlng income 4 2.1 4.5
Operating profit 446.1 378.7
Cther income 5 4.4 3.4
Net interest payable 6 {218.0) {191.5)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 2325 167.5
Taxation (34.4} 40.9
Profit for the year 198.1 238.4
Dividends (214.9) (21 O 7)
Retained (Ioss}/proflt for the year {16.8) 27.7

For the purpose of the Regulatory Accounts, income from rents receivable of £1.3 millicn (2004 - £1.4 million) is disciosed within other
income, and not operating income, and income from current asset investments of £3.1 million {2004 - £8.0 million) is disclosed within
other income, and not net interest payable and similar charges.

In 2004/05 £11.5 million of expenditure relating to agueduct security of supply work has been capitalised in the statutory accounts
based on the Company’s interpretation of FRS1E. This expenditure has been classified as infrastructure renewals expenditure in the
regulatory accounts based on the Company’s interpretation of RAG2.03. Accordingly, an adjustment of £3.5 million has also been made
te the defarred taxation charge. This classification is similarly reflected in the historic cost balance sheet on page 30 and current cost
profit and loss account and balance sheet on page 31.
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Summarised Company historical cost balance sheet

At 31 March
2005 2004
m m

Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets 6,281.2 5,854.1
Investments 0.3 0.4
Total fixed assets 6,281.5 5,854.5
Current assets
Stock 28 2.4
Debtors 325.8 214.4
Cash at bank - 77
Short-term investments §31.7 319.5
Total current assets 860.3 544.0
Creditors: amounts falling due within a year
Borrowings {495.8) 86.1)
Dividends payable (137.5) (134.9)
Other crediters (537.4) (536.0)
Total creditors (1,170.7) (767.0)
Net current liabilities (310.4} {(223.0)
Total assets less current liabilities 5,971.1 5,631.5
Creditors: amounts failing due after more than one year
Borrowings {3,385.3) (3,071.4)
Cther creditors 2.4) 2.1}

{(3,387.7) (3,073.5)
Provision for liabilities and charges (260.1) (226.9)
Deferred income (83.9) {(74.9)
Net assets employed 2,239.4 2,256.2
Capital and reserves .
Called up share capital 755.3 755.3
Share premium 647.8 647.8
Profit and loss account 836.3 853.1
Capital and reserves 2,239.4 2,256.2

In the preparation of the statutory accounts, the Company has followed industry practice and adopted the infrastucture renewals
accounting basis as set out in FRS 15 'Tangible fixed assets'. However, for the purposes of the Regulatory Accounts, Cfwat has
requested that FRS 15 is not applied for infrastructure renewals accounting, thereby providing a basis consistent with prior years. The
infrastructure renewals accrual of nil in 2005 (2004 - £7.6 million) is therefore shown within provisions for liabilities and charges, not fixed

assets.
Expediture relating to aqueduct security of supply work is classified as described on page 29.

For the purposes of the Regulatory Accounts, loans to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings of £40.7 miifion (2004 - £40.7

million) are disclosed within short-term investments, not debtors,

For the purposes of the Regulatory Accounts, deferred income is classified separately. For the purposes of the statutory accounts
£4.3 milion of deferred income Is disclosed within creditors falling due within one year (2004 - £3.7 milion), and £79.6 milion is classified

within creditors falling due after more than one year (2004 - £74.9 million),

1
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Current cost profit and loss account

For year ended 31 March

2005 2004
Note £m £m
Turnover 2 1,135.1 1,028.3
Current cost operating costs 3 {776.9) (724.6)
Operating income 2 13 2.8
359.5 307.5
Working capital adjustment 2 8.6 4.1
Current cost operating profit 368.1 311.6
Cther income 5 4.4 9.4
Net interest payable 8 {218.0} {191.6)
Financing adjustment 99.8 72.6
Current cost profit on ordinary activities before taxation 254.3 202.0
Taxation
- Current tax 1.0 1.2
- Deferred tax {35.4) 28.7
Current cost profit attributable to shareholders 2199 2429
Dividends (214.9) {210.7)
Current cost profit retained 5.0 32.2

The cost of services provided by Verlex Data Science Limited, an asscciated company of United Utilities Water PLC, has been analysed
across cperating costs as if the service were carried out by United Utilities Water PLC, in accordance with RAG4 guidelines.
Expediture relating 1o aqueduct security of supply work is classified as described on page 29.

At 31 March
2005 2004
Mote £m tm
Tangible assets 7 40,587.2 37,7994
Third party contributions since 1989/90 ‘ {230.4) {211.1)

Working capital g {132.1) {269.3)

Net operating assets

40,224.7 37.318.0

Cash and investments 531.9 318.8
Non-trade debtors 1449 40.5
Non-trade creditors due within one year {719.1) (191.5)
Creditors due after one vear (3,387.7) (3,073.8)
Provisions for liabilities and charges

- Deferred tax (254.7) (219.3)

- Other provisions (5.4) -
Dividends pavable {137.5) (134.9)
Net assets employed 36,3971 34,059.8
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 755.4 7554
Share premium account 647.8 647 .8
Profit and loss account (251.7) {256.7)
Current cost reserve 10 35,245.6 32,3133
Shareholders’ funds 36,397.1 34,059.8

Expediture relating to agqueduct security of supply work is classifiect as described on page 29.
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Current cost cash flow statement

For the vear ended 31 March
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2005 2005 2004 2004
£m £m £m £m
Net cash flow from operating activities 605.9 667.1
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received 9.9 11.9
interest paid {222.0) (194.6)
Interest in finance lease rentals {5.6) 8.0)
Termination of interest rate swap contracts 19.7 64.0
Income received from current asset investments 23 8.0
Non-equity dividends paid {2.1) 9.1)
Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance {204.8) {125.8)
Taxation received 13.5 g1
Capital expenditure
Gross cost of purchase of fixed assets (669.2) (750.9)
Receipt of grants and contributions 17.6 13.9
Infrastructure renewals expenditure (66.3) (81.0)
Disposal of fixed assets 2.3 7.2
Net cash outflow from investing activities (715.6) (810.8)
Acquisitions and disposals 0.1 1.0
Equity dividends paid (203.2) (198.1)
Management of liquid resources
(increase)/decrease in short-term deposits (212.2) 174.2
Net cash outflow before financing (716.3) (283.3)
Financing 7341 250.4
Increase/{decrease) in cash and overdrafts 17.8 (32.9)
Notes to the current cost cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 March
2005 2004
£m £m
Reconciliation of current cost operating profit to net cash flow from operating activities
Current cost operating profit 368.1 3116
Working capital adjustment (8.9) @.1)
Changes in stock (0.4) 0.1
Receipts from other income 1.3 1.4
Current cost depreciation 296.1 265.5
Effect of other deferrals and accruals on operating activity cashflow (4.9) (4.3
Gurrent cost profit on disposal of fixed assets (1.3) 2.9
{Increase)/decrease in debtors and prepaid expenses {111.8) 3.6
(Decrease)/increase in creditors and accrued expenses (4.3) 15.2
Infrastructure renewals expenditure €6.3 81.0
Movement in other provisions 5.4 -
Net cash inflow from operating activities 605.9 B667.1
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For the year ended 31 March
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2005 2004
£m £m
Analysis of cash flows for headings netted in the cash flow statement
Financing
lssue of shares - 100.0
New loans 7794 3226
Loans repaid {45.3} (51.8)
Finance lease repaid - (102.3)
New short term borrowings - 123
Short term borrowings repaid - {30.4)
Net cash inflow from financing 734.1 250.4
A1 Apsit Noncash At 31 March
2004 Cashflow mavements 2005
£m £m £m £m
Analysis of changes in net debt
Cash at bank and in hand 7.7 7.7) - -
QOverdrafts (38.5) 25.5 - (13.0)
(30.8) 17.8 - (13.0)
Debt due after one year (2,890.4) {313.1) (1.5 {3,305.0)
Debt due within one year (57.6) (421.0) (3.4) {482.0)
Finance Leases (81.0) - - (81.0)
(3,159.8) {716.3) (4.9) (3,881.0)
Current asset investments 319.5 212.2 - 531.7
Net debt {2,840.9) {504.1) 4.9) (3,349.3)
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Notes o the current cost accounts

1 Current cost accounting policies

These accounts have been prepared for the total business of United Utifities Water PLC in accordance with guidance issued by the
Director General of Water Services for modified real term financial statements suitable for regulation in the water industry. They measure
profitability on the basis of real financial capital maintenance in the contexd of assets which are valued at their current cost value to the
business.

An Asset Management Plan (AMP) survey of existing assets as at 31 March 2003 was undertaken during 2003/04 and the
adjustments to asset values as a result of that exercise were included within the tangible fixed asset note in 2004/05. The current cost
depreciation figures included in the 2004/05 current cost operating costs have been based upon the revised values. In the intervening
years, between AMP surveys, values are restated to take account of changes in the general level of inflation as measured by changss in
the Retail Price Index (RPI), and any other significant changes in asset records identified during the year.

{a) Tangible fixed assets

Assets in operationa! use are valued at the replacement cost of their operating capability. Te the extent that the regulatory regime does
net allow such assets to earn a return high enough to justify that value, this represents a modification of the value to the business
principle. Also, no provision is made for the possible funding of fulure replacements by contributions from third parties and to the extent
that some of those assets would on replacement be so funded, replacement cost again differs from value to the business.

§1 Operational assals
Non-specialised operational assets are valued on the basis of open market value for existing use at 31 March 1588 and have been
expressed in real terms by indexing using the Retail Price Index (RP)) since that date,

Specialised cperational assets are valued on the basis of information provided by the Asset Management Plan (AMP). Values are
adjusted by changes in RPI between Periodic Reviews. The unamortised pertion of third party contributions received is deducted in
arriving at net operating assets (as described below).

it inhasiruchure assois
Malns, sewers, impounding and raw water storage reservoirs, dams, sludge pipelings and sea outfalls are valued at replacement cost
determined principally on the basis of data provided by the AMP.

In the intervening years, values are restated to take account of changes in the general level of inflation as measured by changes in the
RPI over the year.

fig) Dihay fhud nesels
All other fixed assets are valued principally on the basls of data provided by the AMP. Between Periodic Reviews, values are restated for
inflation as measurad by changes in the RPI.

{b) Grants and other third party contributions

Grants, infrastructure charges and other third party contributions received since 31 March 1890 are carried forward to the extent that any
balance has not been credited to revenue. The balance carried forward is restated for the change in the RPI for the year and treated as
deferred income.

(¢) Real financial capital maintenance adjustments
These adjusiments are made to histerical cost profit in order to arrive at profit after the maintenance of financial capital in real terms.

{1 Working capital adiugiment
This s calculated by applying the change in RPI over the vear to the opening total of trade debtors and stock less trade creditors.

) Finenclng adiusinong
This is calculated by applying the change in RPI over the vear 1o the opening balance of net finance which comprises alt menetary assets
and liabilities other than to equity shareholders, which are not included in working capital.

& Depreciaiion agjustment
This is the difference between depreciation based on the current cost value of assets in these financial statements and depreciation
charged in arriving at historical cost profit.

fivy Disposal of fxed assels adusiment
This is the difference between the book values of realised assets in the current cost financial statements and in the histerical cost
financial statements.

{d) Allocation of costs to principal services

Dirgct costs are charged to the sub-service areas to which they are attributable, as defined in RAG4, whereas business activities ana
inciirect coste are allocated on an activity basis using quantitative measures such as headcount and other methods reflecting
consumption of service.
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2 Analysis of turnover and operating income
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For the year ended 31 March 2005 2004
Water Sewerage Water Sewerage
services services Total services services Total
£m £ £m £m £m m
Turnover
Tariff basket
- Measured 160.5 222.7 383.2 1421 196.5 338.6
- Unmeasured 3115 316.7 628.2 277.6 2958 573.2
- Trade effluent - 25.9 259 - 214 214
472.0 565.3 1,037.3 419.7 513.5 933.2
Non-tariff basket
- Revenue grants 0.3 - 03 0.1 - 0.1
- Large user revenues 445 28.9 734 42,9 29.9 72.8
- Other sources 2.6 1.0 3.6 3.6 1.5 5.1
- Third party services _ 145 8.0 20.5 18.2 1.9 181
Total Turnover 5339 601.2 1,135.1 482.5 546.8 1,029.3
Cperating income
Current cost profit on disposal of fixed assets 1.1 0.2 1.3 1.0 1.8 2.8
Total operating Income 1.1 0.2 1.3 1.0 1.8 2.8
Working capital adjustment 4.0 4.6 8.6 1.9 2.2 4.1
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3 Current cost operating costs for the year ended 31 March 2005
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Service Analysis Water services Sewerage services
Sludge Sewerage
Resource and Water supply Sewage {realment sarvice
treatment Distribution subtotal Sewerage treatment and disposal subtotal
£m £m m £ £rm £m £m
Direct costs
Employment costs 11.0 10.4 21.4 3.3 13.6 7.6 245
Power 5.4 6.4 1.8 2.2 10.3 4.6 17.1
Hired and contracted services 2.3 14.7 17.0 9.2 3.7 9.3 22.2
Materials and consumables 7.5 14 8.9 0.2 5.1 4.0 9.3
Service charges EA 12.8 - 126 1.9 3.9 - 58
QOther direct costs - 1.3 1.3 0.3 0.5 0.3 11
Total direct costs 38.8 34.2 73.0 17.1 37.1 268 80.0
Genera! and support expenditure 18.9 22.2 42.1 3.9 28.4 16.7 49.0
Functional expenditure 58.7 56.4 1156.1 21.0 85.5 425 129.0
Operating expenditure
Customer services 30.9 31.2
Scientific services 7.5 3.7
Other business activities 3.6 3.6
Total business activities 42.0 38.5
Local authority rates 21.9 18.5
Doubtful debts 18.5 209
Exceptional items 7.1 741
Total cpex less third party services 204.6 214.0
Third party services - operating expenditure 13.9 1.1
Total operating expenditure 218.5 2151
Capital maintenance
Infrastructure renewals expenditure 5.2 37.9 43.1 22.9 - 0.3 23.2
Infrastructure renewals accrual/
{prepayment) - 4.1 141 {29.8) - - (29.8)
Current cost depreciation {allocated) 54.2 20.3 74,5 17.8 100.4 227 140.9
Amortisation of deferred credits 2.9 2.1
Business activities current cost
depreciation {non ailocated) 42.3 38.0
Capital maintenance excluding third party services 17141 170.2
Third party services - capital maintenance 2.0 -
Total capital maintenance 173.1 170.2
Total operating costis 391.6 385.3
CCA (MEA) values:
Service activities 41321 8.912.7 13,044.8 24,296.1 2,009.9 10023 27,3083
Business activities 111.2 89.4
Total 13,156.0 27,397.7
Services for the third parties 335 -
Total 13,189.5 27,397.7

The depreciation charge from associated companies has been reclassified as business activities capital cost in accordance with RAG4.
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3 Current cost operating costs for the year ended 31 March 2004
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Service Analysis Water services Sewerage sarvices
Sludge Sewerage
Resource and Water supply Sewage ireatment servics
treatment Distribution suptotal Sewerage freatment and disposal subtotal
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Direct costs
Employment costs 9.7 9.6 19.3 3.2 13.0 6.9 23.1
Power 4.9 53 10.2 2.5 8.1 3.7 14.3
Agencies - - - 1.6 - - 1.6
Hired and contracted services 2.8 15.9 18.7 6.2 5.7 9.8 21.7
Materials and consumables 8.5 1.1 7.6 0.1 4.8 4.0 89
Service charges EA 11.8 - 11.8 1.7 3.3 - 50
QOther direct costs - 241 2.1 0.1 0.4 0.2 0.7
Total direct costs 35.7 34.0 69.7 15.4 353 24.6 76.3
General and support expenditure 13.4 17.8 31.2 1.0 19.3 13.2 435
functional expenditure 48.1 51.8 100.9 26.4 54.6 37.8 118.8
Operating expenditure
Customer services 27.7 27.9
Scientific services 6.8 3.3
Cther business activities 4.2 4.2
Total business activities 38.7 354
Local authority rates 249 14.8
Coubtful debts 23.0 26.5
Exceptional items 0.4 0.4
Total opex less third party services 187.9 195.9
Third party services - operating expenditure 12.8 0.3
Total operating expenditure 200.7 186.2
Capital maintenance
Infrastructure renewals expenditure 11.2 29.3 40.5 40.5 - - 40.5
Infrastructure renewals accrual/
(prepayment) 5.3 13.9 19.2 (35.6) - - (35.6)
Current cost depreciation {altocated) 48.8 24.1 729 8.7 88.5 221 118.3
Amontisation of deferred credils {2.6) (1.7
Business activities current cost
depreciation (non allocated) 358 374
Capital maintenance excluding third party services 165.9 159.9
Third party services - capital maintenance 1.9 -
Total capital maintenance 167.8 159.9
Total operating costs 368.5 356.1
CCA (MEA) values:
Service activities 3,319 9,770.2 13,0801 21,830.3 1,958.7 542.3 24,331.3
Business activities 162.3 182.6
Total 13,252.4 24,513.9
Services for the third parties 325 0.6
Total 13,284.9 24,514.5

The depreciation charge from associated companies has been reclassified as business activities capital cost in accordance with RAG4.
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4 OQperating income
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2005 2004
fm £m
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 2.1 45
Operating income 2.1 4.5
5 Other income
2005 2004
1 £m
Income received from current asset investments 341 8.0
Net rents receivable 1.3 14
Other income 4.4 9.4
6 Net interest payable
2005 2004
£m £m
Interest payable and similar charges:
On bank loans, overdrafts and other loans 2134 1701
On finance leases 33 2.9
Group undertakings 40.0 298
Total interest payable and similar charges 256.7 202.6
Interest receivable and similar income:
Group undertakings {9.8) 6.4)
External (28.9) (4.8)
Net interest payable 218.0 191.86
7 Current cost analysis of fixed assets by asset type for the year ended 31 March 2005
Total services Speciatised  Non-specialised Infrastructure Cther
operational operational agsels langible
assets assets assets Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Gross replacement cost:
At 1 April 2004 7,765.1 1256 33,629.8 875.1 42,395.6
AMP adjustment {28.5) 5.2 84.6 (308.7) (257.8)
RPI adjustment 248.2 4.0 1,074.8 28.0 1,365.0
Transfer - - - - -
Digposals (25.1) 2.9 - (84.5) (112.5)
Additions 390.7 6.7 194.7 45.3 637.4
At 31 March 2005 8,350.4 128.2 34,983.9 8552 44,017.7
Depreciation:
At 1 April 2004 4,052.4 18.7 - 53C.1 4,596.2
AMP adjustment {1,336.5) 28.0 - (188.7) (1,497.2)
RPI adjustment 129.5 0.4 - 17.0 146.9
Transfer - - - - -
Disposals (24.8) 2.4 - (84.3) (111.5)
Charge for the year 208.7 6.7 - 80.7 296.1
At 31 March 2005 3,029.3 46.4 - 354.8 3,430.5
Net book value
At 31 March 2005 5,321.1 81.8 34,983.9 200.4 40,587.2
111.9 33,620.8 345.0 37,7994

At 1 April 2004

3,712.7
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7 Current cost analysis of fixed assets by asset type for the year ended 31 March 2005 (continued)
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As disclosed in note 1 to the current cost accounts on page 34 the Company completed an Asset Management Plan {AMP) survey and
revaluation of its existing assets as at 31 March 2003, In accordance with instructions from Ofwat the Company has incorporated the
adjustment ihis year within the AMP adjustment line. The revaluation is based on an assessment of the Modern Equivalent Asset Value
{MEAV) of the Company’s assets being the current cost and accumulated depreciation of an asset of equivalent productive capability to
satisfy the remaining service potential of the asset being valued. The Company’s assessments, which were completed as part of the 2004
Price Review process, reflect its judgements in respect of asset lives, age profiles, asset condition and performance as at 31 March 2008.

Water services Speciafised  non-specialised Infrastructure Other
operational operational assets tangible
assels assets assets Total
£m £m £m £m tm
Gross replacement cost:
At 1 April 2004 3,175.2 56.1 11,794.3 421.5 15,447 1
AMP adjustment (423.4) 19.6 {1,364.1) (150.8) {1,818.7)
RPI adjustment 101.5 1.8 . 3789 135 493.7
Transfer - - - 235 23.5
Disposals (18.4) (2.9) - (42.8) B4.1)
Additions 159.2 3.6 815 29.3 2736
At 31 March 2005 29941 78.2 10,888.6 294.2 14,2551
Depreciation:
At 1 April 2004 1,899.5 3.6 - 259.1 2,162.2
AMP adjustrment {1,157.5) 222 - {€0.6) (1,225.9)
RPI adjustment 60.7 01 - 8.3 89.1
Transfer - - - 5.4 5.4
Disposals (18.1) 2.4) - (42.7) (83.2)
Charge for the year 70.5 4.0 - 43.5 118.0
At 31 March 2005 855.1 275 - 183.0 1,065.6
Net book value:
At 31 March 2005 2,139.0 50.7 10,888.6 111.2 13,189.5
At 1 April 2004 1,275.7 525 11,794.3 162.4 13,284.9
Sewsrage sarvices Specialised  MNon-specialised Infrastructure Other
aperaticnal operational assets fangible
assels assets assats Total
£m £m £m £m Cm
Gross replacement cost:
At 1 April 2004 4,589.9 69.5 21,835.5 453.6 26,948.5
AMP adjustment 304.9 (24.8) 1,448.7 {167.9) 1,660.9
RPI adjustment 146.7 2.2 697.9 14.5 861.3
Transfer - - - (23.5) (23.5)
Disposals 6.7 - - (41.7) (48.4)
Additions 231.5 341 113.2 18.0 363.8
At 31 March 2005 5,356.3 50.0 24,095.3 261.0 29,762.6
Depreciation:
At 1 Aprit 2004 2,152.9 101 - 271.0 2,434.0
AMP adjustment (179.0) 5.8 - (28.1) (271.3)
RPI adjustment 68.8 0.3 - 8.7 77.8
Transfer - - - 5.4 5.4
Disposals 6.7) - - (41.6) (48.3)
Charge for the year 138.2 2.7 - 37.2 178.1
At 31 March 2005 2,174.2 18.9 - 1718 2,364.9
Net book value:
At 31 March 2005 3,182.1 3141 24,095.3 89.2 27,3977
182.6 24,514.5

At 1 April 2004

2,437.0

59.4 21,885.5
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Notes 1o the current cost accounts {continued)

7 GCurrent cost analysis of fixed assets by asset type for the year ended 31 March 2005 (continued)
The transfer of other cost and depreciation from sewerage to water services in the tables on page 39 are reclassifications relating to ¢ther

tangible asset additions from financlal vears 2001 to 2004. These reclassifications rapresent the Company's estimation of the maost
appropriate basis of allocation in order to align allowances and expenditure for the 2000-2005 period.

8 Regulatory capital value

2005
£m
Opening RCV for the year 5,538
Capital expenditure 493
Infrastructure renewals expenditure 103
Infrastructure renewals charge (111)
Grants and contributions (19)
Depreciation {(234)
Outperformance of regulatory assumptions (5 vears in arrears) 8
Price Review rebasing by Ofwat 280
Closing RGV carried forward 6,058
Average RCV {2004/05 year average prices) 5,590

The figures quoted are as published by Cfwat in March 2005 {(at March 2004 prices) and therefcre do not agree with other actual values
reflected in the Company’s regulatory financial statements. All costs have been indexed to March 2005 (RPI - 180.5) prices, except for
the average RCV, which is shown at year average prices (RPI - 188.5), in accordance with Ofwat's regulatory accounting guidelines.
Ofwat have rebased the 1 April 2005 RCV to £6,058 million due to the logging up of expenditure excluded from the price control in the
2005-10 pertod and additions for indexation due to construction prices being in excess of RPI.

9 Working capital

2005 2004
£m £m

Stocks 2.8 2.4
Trade debtors 95.2 981
Working cash balances - 7.7
Trade creditors (25.7) (31.1)
Short-term capital creditors (154.5) (188.3)
Infrastructure renewals accrual - (15.7)
Other trade accruals {85.4) (179.3)
Trade payments in advance - 53.1
Payroll related taxation and social security {2.8} (2.6)
Group trade crediters (31.3) 22.1)
Prepayments and other debtors 69.6 55
Total working capital (132.1) (269.3)
10 Movement on current cost reserve

2005 2004

£m £m

At 1 April 32,913.3 32,045.3
ANMP adjustment 1,2394 0.4
RP! adjustments:
Fixad assets 1,208.1 949.5
Working capita! {8.6) 4.1}
Financing (99.8) {72.8)
Grants and third party contributions (6.8) 5.2)
At 31 March 35,2456 32,913.3
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Notes to the current cost accounts {continued)

11 Information in respect of transactions with any other business or activity of the appointee or any associated company

To the best of their knowledge, the directors of United Utilities Water PLC declare that all appropriate transactions with associated
companies have been disclosed and material transactions with asscciated companies are at arm's length and no cross-subsidy has
occurred. The materiality level of transactions used for reporting is 0.5% of turnover.

Borrowings and sums lent
The following loans from associated companies existed at 31 March 2005:

£m Interest rate Repayment date
iJniied Ut%l.iﬁes PLC - 400 milion US $ bonds o 2424 6875% - August QOéé
LJnited Ltilities PLC - 350 million US $ bonds 2121 6.25% August 2005
United Utilities Delaware Inc - 364.5 million US $ bonds 200.0 2.41% to0 3.41% July 2034

United Utilities Water PLC operates a daily zero balancing sweep banking arrangement with its parent United Utilities PLC. This has
resulted in a total of £0.9 million net interest payable to United Utilities PLC for the year.

The following loans to associated companies existed at 31 March 2005:

£m Interest rate Repayment dats

United Utilities PLC 40.0 4.45% 10 5.36% Cn demand

Dividends paid to associated undertakings
During the year, dividends payable to United Utilities North West PLC {formerly United Utilities Service Delivery PLC) totalled £214.9
million. This comprised a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2005 of £137.5 million, an interim dividend of £68.3 million and a 7
per cent preference share dividend of £9.1 million.

The ordinary dividend increased by 2.1 per cent in 2004/05. The Company’s dividend policy is to declare dividends which are
censistent with the Company's performance and the management of the economic risk of the business. This pclicy has resulted in
dividend growth broadty in line with inflation in this review period.
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current cost accounts {continued)

11 information in respect of transactions with any other business or activity of the appointee or any associated company
{continued)

Supply of services

Services supplied to United Utilities Water PLC from associated companies:

Nature of Company Terms of Total value
transaction supply of service

£m
Managed Serwces Vertex Data Science Limited Market tested rates 80.0

based on actual activity
undertaken and other
market testing

Systems and software development Vertex Data Science Limited Market tested rates 19.8
based on actual activity
undertaken and other
market testing

Group management charge Unlted Litilities PLC Recharge of costs 17.4

Water meter supply and installaticn United Utilities Networks Limited Recharge of costs 13.8

Note - The Group management charge of £17.4 million (2004 - £14.6 mllllon) from United Utilities PLC represents 53.3 per cent (2004 -
80.3 per cent) of the total management charge to subsidiaries. Approximately 80 per cent of the charge is allocated by activity (2004 - 80
per cent).

The Vertex charging arrangements for the Managed Services are based on actual activity in the year.

Services supplied by United Utitities Water PLC to associated companies:

Nature of Compary Terms of Total value

transaction supply of servce

m
Shared services United Utilities Electnmty PLC Recharge cf costs 14.7
New connections United Utilities Networks Limited Recharge of costs 7.9

Note - Shared services include support, accounting and procursment services.

Turnover of associated companies (based on draft statutory accounts) for the year ended 31 March 2005:

Turnover of

associated company

£m

Vertex Data SClence Limited ' 362.4
United Utilities Electricity PLC 258.4

United Utilities Networks Limited 170.2
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This review should be read in conjuncticn with the Chairman's
statement, the Operating and Financial review and the directors’
report that form part of the statutory financial statements.

Movements from prior year and five year trends

Turnover and operatng costs

The factors cutlined in the Operating and Financial review
contribute to the movements in turnover and operating costs from
the prior vear,

Over the five year period turnover has been impacted by the
price review, which reduced inceme in 2001 and 2002, and then
increased it over the next three years. Measured sales, including
large user revenues now represent 40 per cent of total sales,
compared with 34 per cent in 2000/01 as new properties are
always connected with a measured supply. The switch from
unmeasured to measured methods of biling has also led o small
decreases in per capita consumption.

During the five year pericd there has been a trend of
increased depreciation charges reflecting the increases in the
capital investment programme. Further increases in costs have
resulted from the commissioning of new schemes in the
Quality/New Chbligations programmes partly offset by efficiency
improvements.

Neat interast

Due to increased cash requirements caused by the Company’s
capital expenditure programme, borrowing has increased over the
last five years. As a direct consequence net borrowing costs have
risen over the period.

Finansing adjustmen

The increase in the financing adjustment over the five year period
is a result of the uplift in the RPI figure and increased borrowing to
fund the capital programme. Note 1 ciii} cn page 34 contains
further explanation on this adjustment.

Taxaiion

The factors outlined in the Operating and Financial review
contributes to the movements in taxation during the period. With
the exception of 2003/04, the tax charge over the period has
remained relatively consistent. The credit in 2003/04 was
principally due to the impact of increased UK government bond
rates on the discount of the full potential fiability.,

Dividends
The basis of the dividend is cutlined in note 11 under the heading
“Dividends paid to associated undertakings”,

Tangitie fxed assels

Tangible assets increased gach year as a result of the continued
investment as part of the asset management programme together
with the RPI adjustment to restate the assat values in real terms,
offset by the depreciation in the year. During the year, adjustments
were made to the current cost asset base following the 2004
Periodic Review in line with Ofwat instructions {see page 34).

Thivd party conbributions
Movements over the five year period in third party contributions
are broadly in fine with the increase in tangiblz fixed assets.

Working oapilsl

Movements in working capital for the period are outlined in note @
on page 40. Other trade accruals have reduced due tc a
reclassification of interest accruals from working capital to non-
trade creditors., Short-term capital creditors have reduced
reflecting a fall in capital expenditure from the peak in 2003/04.
The reduction in the infrastructure renswals accrual reflects the
activity on the programme and the movement to a nil balance by
the end of the AMP period. Accrued income has been reclassified
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v accounts commentary

from trade payments in advance to prepayments and accrued
income in the period. The overall increase in the five year period is
mainly due to an increase in capital accruals in ling with the
increase in capital investment.

Cash and mvastiments

The increase over the five year period is as a result of prefunding

cur capital expenditure needs. Long-term debt is raised when the
market opporunity presents itself. The sums raised are placed in

shori-term investments until required by the business.

Non-trade deblors
The increase in non-trade debtors in the year is mainly due to a
prepayment of pension contributions.

Monelrade creditors

The increase in the period reflects £700 million of new borrowing
offset by a reclassification of debt less than one year as
discussed above.

Crediiors due afler one yeay

The increased level of creditors since 2007 predominantly reflects
the long-term debt raised to fund the capital investment
programme, and the subsequent prefunding as detailed above.

Cunrent Cost Reserve
The increase in the year mainly reflects the BPI and AMP
adjustment to tangible fixed assets {see note 10).

Caffed up share capital
The increase in 2004 is due to the issue of 100 milicn £1 nominal
shares at par value.

Provisions

The increase in provisions from 2000/01 mainly reflects the
implementation of FRS 19 ‘Deferred taxation’. The increase in the
period mainly reflects capita! allowances in excess of depreciation
and the creation of a restructuring provision in 2004/05.

Atypical amounts

Atypical amounts in 2005 totalled £15.3 million mainly relating to
restructuring costs to enable the regulated business to meet its
required efficiency targets for the AMP4 period and a
reassessment of prior year liabifities,

Changes in the treatment of expenditure
There have been no material changes in the treatment of
expenditure in 2004/05,

Basis of allocation of expenditure

The revenues, costs, assets and liabilities are directly allocated to
the appointed business and any other activity or associated
company, except where they relate to common support sarvices.
These relating to common support services are appertioned con
the basis of the demands made on each of these support
services by each principal service or activity. Note 1{d) on page
34 also outlines the cost allocation policy to principal services.

Amounts paid to charitable trusts

The Company has created an independent charitable trust to
assist customers with payment difficulties to which It intends to
donate approximately £15 million over the next five years
commencing in 2005/08.
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